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Chairman’s Statement

For the year ended 31 March 2013, the Group’s sales turnover
decreased by 2.5% to HK$2.36 billion (2012: HK$2.42 billion) and
the consolidated net profit decreased by 14.4% to HK$108.8 million
(2012: HK$127.1 million). Basic earnings per share of the Group for
the year ended 31 March 2013 was HK32.4 cents (2012: HK37.9
cents). The Board of Directors has resolved to recommend at the
forthcoming Annual General Meeting the payment of a final dividend
of HK10.3 cents (2012: HK12.5 cents) per share for the year ended
31 March 2013. Together with the interim dividend of HK2.5 cents
per share paid in January this year, the total dividend for the year
ended 31 March 2013 will be HK12.8 cents per share (2012: HK15
cents).

Business Review

The Group is engaged in design and manufacturing of a wide range
of household electrical appliances.

For the year ended 31 March 2013, the overall business
environment continued to be competitive and challenging. Sales
turnover improved significantly in the America market. However,
this improvement was more than offset by the drop in sales in the
Europe, Asia and other markets. Although the commodity and raw
material prices have generally stablized, our profit margins were
eroded by increase in labour costs and operating costs in the PRC,
increase in depreciation charges and appreciation of Renminbi.

During the year under review, sales turnover decreased by 2.5%
to HK$2.36 billion. The Eurozone continued to be shadowed by
the sluggish economy and the lingering political and economic
uncertainties. Sales turnover to Europe decreased by 10% to
HK$1.15 billion representing 48.9% of the Group’s sales turnover.
Sales turnover to Asia decreased by 12.6% to HK$575.1 million
representing 24.4% of the Group’s sales turnover. Sales turnover
to America showed significant improvements under the recovering
economy. Sales turnover to America increased by 53.1% to
HK$546.2 million representing 23.2% of the Group’s sales turnover.
Sales turnover to other markets decreased by 31.7% to HK$82.2
million representing 3.5% of the Group’s sales turnover.
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Chairman’s Statement

Business Review (continueq)

Gross profit for the year ended 31 March 2013 decreased by 9%
to HK$283.6 million. Gross profit margin dropped from 12.9% to
12.0%. The drop in gross profit margin was mainly attributed by the
increase in labour costs and operating costs in the PRC, increase in
depreciation charges and appreciation of Renminbi.

Selling and distribution expenses increased by 0.8% to HK$38.0
million. As a percentage to sales turnover, selling and distribution
expenses remained at 1.6% compared to last year. Administration
expenses increased by 4.1% to HK$143.3 million. As a percentage
to sales turnover, administration expenses increased from 5.7% to
6.1% compared to last year.

The investment property located in Wanchai, Hong Kong was
revaluated at HK$210.6 million (2012: HK$181.1 million) giving
rise to an increase in fair value of HK$29.5 million (2012: HK$20.7
million) in the income statement. Currently, all units in this investment
property are leased to third parties.

Net Profit for the year decreased by 14.4% to HK$108.8 million
(2012: HK$127.1 million). Net profit margin decreased from 5.3% to
4.6% compared to corresponding period last year.

Prospects

Looking ahead, we are still being confronted with difficult and
uncertain economic and business environment. Fierce competition,
sluggish consumer sentiments, rising labour costs and operating
costs in the PRC, appreciation of the Renminbi and shortage of
labour supply in the PRC are amongst our biggest challenges. We
continue to seek growth opportunities through new customers
and new product categories. At the operations level, costs and
productivity efficiency improvements continue to be our top
priorities. Stringent cost control measures and lean concepts would
be applied to all aspects of our operations. Semi-automation would
continue to be implemented to raise productivity and efficiency at the
manufacturing level.

The Group celebrates its 50th anniversary in business this year. With
our prudent and pragmatic business approach, healthy financial
conditions and commitment to excel, we are confident that we
would sail through the challenges and uncertainties ahead of us in
the coming future.
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Chairman’s Statement

Liquidity and Financial Resources

As at 31 March 2013, the Group had total assets of HK$1.76 billion
(2012: HK$1.78 billion) which was financed by current liabilities of
HK$639.6 million (2012: HK$676.7 million), long-term liabilities and
deferred taxation of HK$109.2 million (2012: HK$161.8 million) and
shareholders’ equity of HK$1,006.5 million (2012: HK$941.7 million).

The Group continued to maintain a strong balance sheet and a
healthy liquidity position. As at 31 March 2013, the Group held
HK$298.6 million (2012: HK$358.4 million) in cash and bank
deposits. They were mainly placed in Renminbi and US dollar
short term deposits, except for temporary balances held in other
currencies as required pending specific payments. For the year
ended 31 March 2013, the Group generated net cash inflow from
operating activities of HK$79.7 million (2012: HK$227.9 million). As
at the same date, total borrowings were HK$145.7 million (2012:
HK$179.4 million) and the gearing ratio (ratio of total borrowings to
shareholders’ equity) was 14% (2012: 19%).

We continue to apply stringent control over the working capital
cycle. The inventory balance as at 31 March 2013 decreased from
HK$93.8 million to HK$85.9 million in line with the decrease in
sales turnover. The trade receivables balance as at 31 March 2013
increased from HK$509.4 million to HK$517.4 million. The trade
payables balance as at 31 March 2013 decreased from HK$384.4
million to HK$334.8 million.

EEHRE

RBESRMBER

MR-E—=F=A=+—H0 KX&EE 4
B EA17T(E6,0008 8 T (Z T —ZF 17
B8,0008 B L) B R RBEERBAERE
6183,9608 T (— T — — 4 : 6{87,6708
Brr) REBERELERIF1E208E BT
(ZZT——4F:1186,1808 & ) Mk Rz
10186508 B L (Z T — 4 : 94,1708
BT °

AEEREREEEEE RBESHKR
NHEBR - N-_T—=F=-A=1+—8"
REBEB AR RIRTHEH2(89,8608 %
T (ZZ——4F 3858408 87L) - BrAX
NEENRMERE 2B MERESIN
REATFAARERETEREFRED &
E-_T—=ZFZA=1+—BHLEFE A£EE
REKLEXEB 2R RAFEATI708E
T (—Z——F:2{82,790887L) - B H -
BEEBEAI1EL457T08B T (ZE——F:
1187,9408 %) MEEBRELE (AEE
BRBERARRER) B14% (ZT—ZF:
19% ) °

AEEEBEHEEESAMEBBREETE R
—E-=F=ZH=+T—H FE##H9,380
EBETR A ES 08B - MIHE ST A
PEF RZE—=F=A=+—H EKE
SRS SR BSE408 B LI INESE1,7408
BT -R_T—=F=-A=+—HB ENHES
RN R FR31E8,4408 B LR > £3183,4808
BT e



Annual Report 2012/2013 —E——FZ_F—=FF 7

Chairman’s Statement

Liquidity and Financial Resources
(Continued)

Funding for day-to-day operational working capital and capital
expenditures are to be serviced by internal cash flow and
available banking facilities. For the year ended 31 March 2013,
the group invested HK$61 million (2012: HK$207 million) in
plant and machinery, moulds and tools, equipment, computer
systems and other tangible assets for expansion and upgrade
to our manufacturing facilities. The Group’s capital expenditures
were funded by internal resources and bank loans. The capital
expenditure budget for 2013/14 is approximately HK$44 million.
With a healthy financial position and available banking facilities, the
Group is able to provide sufficient financial resources for our current
commitments, working capital requirements, further expansions
of the Group’s business operations and future investment
opportunities, as and when required.

The majority of the Group’s assets and liabilities and business
transactions were denominated in Hong Kong dollars, US dollars,
Renminbis, Euros and British Pounds. Currently the Group does
not implement hedging activity to hedge against foreign currency
exposure. However, we will closely monitor foreign currency
exposure and consider hedging significant foreign currency exposure
should the need arise.

Contingent Liabilities

As at 31 March, 2013, the Group did not have any significant
contingent liabilities.
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Chairman’s Statement

Employee and Remuneration Policies

Currently, the Group employs approximately 5,200 employees. The
majority of our employees work in the PRC. The Group remunerated
our employees based on their performances, experiences and
prevailing market rates while performance bonuses are granted
on a discretionary basis. Share options may also be granted to
employees based on individual performance and attainment of
certain set targets.

Appreciation

On behalf of the Board, | would like to take this opportunity to
express our sincere appreciation to our employees, shareholders
and business associates for their contribution and support
throughout the year.
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Directors and Senior Management

Executive Directors

Cheung Lun, aged 85, is the founder and Chairman of the
Group. He has more than 50 years of management and technical
experience in the industry. He is responsible for formulating the
Group’s overall strategic planning and development.

Cheung Shu Wan, aged 52, is the Managing Director of the Group.
He is the son of Mr. Cheung Lun and joined the Group in 1983.
He obtained a degree in Bachelor of Science from the University
of London, England. He is responsible for the sales & marketing,
research & development and engineering functions of the Group.
He also assists the Chairman in corporate strategic planning and
development.

Cheung Lai Chun, Maggie, aged 55, is the Executive Director
of the Group. She is the daughter of Mr. Cheung Lun and joined
the Group in 1984. She obtained a degree in Bachelor of Science
from Kingston Polytechnic, England. She is in charge of the overall
manufacturing operations of the Group.

Cheung Lai See, Sophie, aged 50, is the Executive Director of
the Group. She is the daughter of Mr. Cheung Lun and joined the
Group in 1995. She obtained a degree in Bachelor of Science from
the University of London, England and a master degree in Business
Management from the City University, England. She is responsible
for the financial and administration functions of the Group.

Cheung Pui, aged 65, is the Executive Director of the Group and
joined the Group in 1963. He has over 45 years of experience in the
plastic injection moulding industry. He is responsible for all technical
aspects of plastic injection moulding activities of the Group.

Independent Non-executive Directors

Chan How Chun, aged 58, was appointed as an Independent
Non-Executive Director in September 2004. She has extensive
experience in accounting, finance and administration. She holds a
Bachelor degree in Commerce and a master degree in Business
Administration from the University of Windsor in Canada and a PhD
degree in Management from the Hong Kong Baptist University.

Lai Ah Ming, Leon, aged 56, was appointed as an Independent
Non-Executive Director in December 1995. He is a solicitor majoring
in commercial and property works.
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Directors and Senior Management

Independent Non-executive Directors
(Continued)

Lo Chung Mau, aged 52, was appointed as an Independent Non-
Executive Director in November 1997. Professor Lo is a surgeon and
is currently the Chin Lan Hong Professor and Head of Department of
Surgery of the University of Hong Kong.

Senior Management

Cheung Shu Chun, Simon, aged 53, is the Director of Sales.
He is the son of Mr. Cheung Lun and joined the Group in 1983.
He obtained a degree in Bachelor of Science from the University
of Wales, England. He is responsible for the sales and business
development function of the Group.

Cheung Shu Sang, William, aged 48, is the Director of Research
and Development. He is the son of Mr. Cheung Lun and joined the
Group in 1994. He holds a BSc degree in Computing Science and
a MSc degree in Management Science, both at Imperial College
London. He also holds a PhD degree in Automation from the
University of Bristol, and is a member of The Hong Kong Institution
of Engineers. He is responsible for the research and development
function of the Group.

Chung Chi Yin, aged 50, is the Director of Engineering and joined
the Group in 1990. He obtained a degree in Bachelor of Science in
Product Design and Technology from The Open University of Hong
Kong. He is responsible for the product development of the Group.

Kwok Ka Lee, Carrie, aged 45, is the Director of Manufacturing
and joined the Group in 1990. She obtained a degree in Bachelor
of Business (Transport and Logistics Management) from Royal
Melbourne Institute of Technology. She is responsible for the
manufacturing management and control function of the Group.

Leung Mun Keung, aged 54, is the Director of Manufacturing. He
joined the Group in 1991 and has over 30 years of experience in
manufacturing of electrical home appliances. He is responsible for
the manufacturing management and control function of the Group.
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Directors and Senior Management

Senior Management (continueq)

Li Wai Ho, aged 49, is the Director of Sales and Marketing
and joined the Group in 2012. He possesses a master degree
in management from Hong Kong Polytechnic University and a
bachelor degree in engineering from Manchester University in United
Kingdom. He has over 17 years of experience in various functions in
Multinational Corporation. He is responsible for sales and marketing
function of the Group.

Tsang Wing Tong, Michelle, aged 46, is the Director of
Manufacturing and joined the Group in 1987. She is responsible for
the manufacturing management and control function of the Group.

Tsui Wing Keung, aged 57, is the Moulds and Tools Manager of
the Group and joined the Group in 1992. He has over 20 years of
experience in plastic injection mould making. He is responsible for
the management of the mould making operation for plastic injection
moulds.

Wong Lai Yung, aged 51, is the Company Secretary and Finance
and Account Manager of the Group and joined the Group in 2006.
She holds a master degree of Business Administration and a master
degree of Corporate Governance from The Open University of Hong
Kong. She also obtained her master degree in Economics from
Jinan University, PRC. Ms. Wong is currently a fellow member of
The Association of Chartered Certified Accountants, Hong Kong
Institute of Certified Public Accountants and the Certified Tax Adviser
of The Taxation Institute of Hong Kong. She is responsible for the
Company’s secretarial duties and financial and accounting aspects
of the Group.

Wong Mei Lin, aged 50, is the Director of Administration and
Personnel and joined the Group in 2000. She obtained a Higher
Certificate in Company Secretaryship and Administration from Hong
Kong Polytechnic. She is responsible for the human resources and
administration management of the Group.

Yasuhiro Terada, aged 51, is the Marketing Manager. He joined the
Group in 1993 and has over 20 years of experience in marketing of
electrical home appliances. He is responsible for the Group’s sales
& marketing functions for Pacific Region (including America and
Japan).
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Directors’ Report

The directors present their annual report and the audited
consolidated financial statements for the year ended 31 March
2013.

Principal Activities

The Company acts as an investment holding company and provides
corporate management services. The activities of its principal
subsidiaries are set out in note 34 to the consolidated financial
statements.

Results and Appropriations

The results of the Group for the year ended 31 March 2013 are set
out in the consolidated statement of comprehensive income on page
36.

An interim dividend of HK2.5 cents per share amounting to
approximately HK$8,386,000 was paid to the shareholders during
the year. The directors now recommend the payment of a final
dividend of HK$10.3 cents per share to the shareholders on the
register of numbers on 30 August 2013, amounting to approximately
HK$34,550,000, and the retention of the remaining profit.

Major Customers and Suppliers

The percentage of purchases and sales attributable to the Group’s
largest suppliers and customers are as follows:
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ENEZRRN KRR EER103BILTFZ
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#934,550,0007%8 7T & AR B8 82 T 1l

FEREFRHBER

AEBSARER R TP 2 BERMIHER
FriEBE DT

Purchases EEE
— the largest supplier — N HER 18%
— five largest suppliers combined —RAREBEFEET 33%
Sales SHERE
— the largest customer —HAEE 44%
— five largest customers combined —RERKEBEAF 94%
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Directors’ Report

Major Customers and Suppliers (continueq)

At no time during the year did a director, an associate of a director
or a shareholder of the Company (which to the knowledge of the
directors owns more than 5% of the Company’s share capital) have
an interest in any of the Group’s five largest suppliers or customers.

Financial Summary

A summary of the results and of the assets and liabilities of the
Group for the past five financial years is set out on page 124.

Share Capital

Details of movements during the year in the share capital of the
Company are set out in note 27 to the consolidated financial
statements.

During the year, neither the Company nor any of its subsidiaries
purchased, sold or redeemed any of the Company’s listed
securities.

Distributable Reserves of the Company

In addition to the retained profits, under the Companies Act 1981
of Bermuda (as amended), the contributed surplus account of the
Company is available for distribution. However, the Company cannot
declare or pay a dividend, or make a distribution out of contributed
surplus if:

(@) itis, or would after the payment be, unable to pay its liabilities
as they become due; or

(b)  the realisable value of its assets would thereby be less than the
aggregate of its liabilities and its issued share capital and share
premium account.

In the opinion of the directors, the reserves of the Company which
were available for distribution to shareholders at 31 March 2013
were HK$130,329,000 (2012: HK$162,234,000).
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Directors’ Report

Investment Properties

Details of the movement of investment properties of the Group are
set out in note 15 to the consolidated financial statements.

Property, Plant and Equipment

During the year, the Group spent approximately HK$61 million
on the acquisition of property, plant and equipment principally to
expand and upgrade its manufacturing facilities. In additions, the
construction of the new plant in Huizhou City, Guangdong Province,
the People’s Republic of China (the “PRC”) has further completed
the factory buildings during the year ended 31 March 2013 therefore
the corresponding construction costs capitalised in construction in
progress, amounted to approximately HK$2 million (2012: HK$58
million) was transferred to furniture, fixtures and equipment during
the year.

Details of these and other movements during the year in the
property, plant and equipment of the Group are set out in note 16 to
the consolidated financial statements.

REW=E
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Directors’ Report

Directors and Directors’ Service
Contracts

The directors of the Company during the year and up to the date of
this report were:

Executive directors

Mr. Cheung Lun

Mr. Cheung Shu Wan

Ms. Cheung Lai Chun, Maggie
Ms. Cheung Lai See, Sophie
Mr. Cheung Pui

Independent non-executive directors
Dr. Chan How Chun

Mr. Lai Ah Ming, Leon

Professor Lo Chung Mau

According to bye-law 87 of the Company’s Bye-laws, Mr. Cheung
Pui and Mr. Lai Ah Ming, Leon shall retire by rotation at the Annual
General Meeting and, being eligible, offer themselves for re-election.

The term of office of each director (except for the Chairman of the
Board and/or the Managing Director) is the period up to his/her
retirement by rotation in accordance with the Company’s Bye-laws.

None of the directors of the Company proposed for re-election at
the forthcoming Annual General Meeting has any service contract
with the Company or any of its subsidiaries not determinable
by the employing company within one year without payment of
compensation (other than statutory compensation).

EERESHRBESYN
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Directors’ Report

Directors’ and Chief Executives’ Interests
and Short Positions in Shares, Underlying
Shares and Debentures

At 31 March 2013, the interests of the directors and chief executives
of the Company in the shares, underlying shares and debentures of
the Company and its associated corporations (within the meaning
of Part XV of the Securities and Futures Ordinance (“‘SFO”)) which
were notified to the Company and The Stock Exchange of Hong
Kong Limited (the “Stock Exchange”) pursuant to Divisions 7 and 8
of Part XV of the SFO (including interests or short positions which
they were taken or deemed to have under such provisions of the
SFO), or which were recorded in the register required to be kept by
the Company pursuant to Section 352 of the SFO, or which were
required to be notified to the Company and the Stock Exchange
pursuant to the Model Code for Securities Transactions by Directors
of Listed Companies (“Model Code”), were as follows:

Ordinary shares of HK$0.10 each of the Company

Number of ordinary shares held

Personal
Name Capacity interest
#E ) BARR
Mr. Cheung Lun Founder of discretionary trust -
RRxE PRETZHILA
Mr. Cheung Shu Wan Beneficial Owner 49,675,335
RERLE ERBEEA
Beneficiary of trust
FiEREA
Ms. Cheung Lai Chun, Maggie Beneficial Owner 600,000
REY LT ExBRA
Beneficiary of trust
FHEXHA

EERETETBRAERKRMD
MR - EREE S RK

B

RZE—=F=ZA=+—H XRAIEER
FETBABERARRREBENR (EE
RBEFLAEGRN (TEHFRBEGR])E
XVER) B9k 7 - BRI ) R EEE R E B R
BESREBEKRAEXVIETRESD A
MEARBREBMEZZHABERAE ([H
RET])BERSAR (BIERSEREESFR
%ahHZ&%MX&F“&ﬁ%%EZ%

KB REBERARARESFRAE
MW%&QV&E@Z&ﬁ%Wm% 53505
B SBREBE LM ARESETELSRFHEE
SR (MREFRD) 2 A EBAEARRT R
TR RSO BRI -

ARABEREEIOET Z2EBR

Approximate %

FEERTEBRYA of the issued

Other share capital

interest Total  of the Company

ERH

EBTRHZ

At By R

149,049,960 149,049,960 44.44%
(Note)
(Hiit)

149,049,960 198,725,295 59.24%
(Notg)
(Hiit)

149,049,960 149,649,960 44.61%
(Note)
(Hiit)
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Directors’ Report

Directors’ and Chief Executives’ Interests
and Short Positions in Shares, Underlying
Shares and Debentures (continueq)

Ordinary shares of HK$0.10 each of the Company (Continued)

EERIETRABREN
LU UE P EI

B (#)

RAREBREEIOCGETZEER (&)

Number of ordinary shares held Approximate %
FEERTEBREA of the issued
Personal Other share capital
Name Capacity interest interest Total  of the Company
fERH
BRTRGZ
e L) HAER Hits Ay BHEI
Ms. Cheung Lai See, Sophie Beneficial Owner 1,258,000 149,049,960 150,307,960 44.81%
REHZL EREEA (Note)
Beneficiary of trust (Hiz)
BREREA
Mr. Cheung Pui Beneficial Owner 1,000,000 - 1,000,000 0.30%
RERE ERBEAA
Note: b it

The references to 149,049,960 shares relate to the same block of shares
in the Company, of which 134,821,960 shares are held by Allan Investment
Co. Limited (“AICL"), 7,658,000 shares are held by Commence Investment
Limited (“CIL") and 6,570,000 shares are held by Unison Associates Limited
(“UAL”"). AICL and CIL are owned as to 89.0% and 100% respectively
by UAL. Mr. Cheung Lun is the settlor of The Cheung Lun Family Trust
(“Trust”). Credit Suisse Trust Limited as trustee of the Trust holds 100% of
the shareholding of UAL and the discretionary beneficiaries of the Trust are,
among other family members, Mr. Cheung Shu Wan, Ms. Cheung Lai Chun,
Maggie and Ms. Cheung Lai See, Sophie.

b HiAT3R B 2149,049,9600% &K R & X 19 - B 15
B — P& 1D #E 35 - H Fh134,821,9600% I& 17 1 25 1@
REBRAR ([HmEKE])RFEF 7,658,000
BERNERELEFRAR ([RELE]EHE
126,570,0000% % 17 £ Unison Associates Limited
(TUALD B -2 miEE 289.0% 4 25 & Bl £
& 2100%# 25 HUALEE B 3R %5 £ & The
Cheung Lun Family Trust ([Trust |) Z BfER F
A ° Credit Suisse Trust LimitedbATrustZ {5 A
H DB 100%,2 UALARHE - Trustz Al BE X 2 AP
(BHEMRERE)EREBLE RBEE2LLR
REEHT &L £ o
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Directors’ Report

Directors’ and Chief Executives’ Interests
and Short Positions in Shares, Underlying
Shares and Debentures (continueq)

Save as disclosed above, none of the directors or chief executives,
nor their associates, of the Company had, as at 31 March 2013,
any interests or short positions in the shares, underlying shares and
debentures of the Company or any of its associated corporations
(within the meaning of Part XV of the SFO) which would have to
be notified to the Company and the Stock Exchange pursuant
to Divisions 7 and 8 of Part XV of the SFO (including interests or
short positions which they were taken or deemed to have under
such provisions of the SFO), or which were recorded in the register
required to be kept by the Company pursuant to Section 352 of the
SFO, or which were required to be notified to the Company and the
Stock Exchange pursuant to the Model Code.

Share Option Scheme

Particulars of the Company’s share option scheme are set out in
note 28 to the consolidated financial statements.

No options have been granted since the adoption of the scheme.

EERIETRABREN
B - (AR 2 s R
B (#E)

BRIAEFERN RRAIZCESTREENT
BABSEBEBAL RZ_ZE—=F=A4
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Directors’ Report

Arrangement to Purchase Shares or
Debentures

Other than the share option scheme set out in note 28 to the
consolidated financial statements, at no time during the year was the
Company or any of its subsidiaries, a party to any arrangements to
enable the directors of the Company to acquire benefits by means of
the acquisition of shares in, or debentures of, the Company or any
other body corporate.

Appointment of Independent
Non-Executive Directors

The Company has received, from each of the independent non-
executive directors, an annual confirmation of his independence
pursuant to Rule 3.13 of the Rules Governing the Listing Securities
on the Stock Exchange. The Company considers all of the
independent non-executive directors are independent.

Directors’ Interests in Contracts of
Significance and Connected
Transactions

Conan Electric Manufacturing Limited (“Conan”), a wholly owned
subsidiary of the Company entered into a tenancy agreement with
Fair Pacific Limited, a wholly-owned subsidiary of AICL, a substantial
shareholder of the Company, pursuant to which Fair Pacific Limited
granted to Conan a tenancy in respect of certain land in Lilin,
Zhongkai Hi-Tech Industrial Development Zone, Huizhou City, the
PRC at a monthly rent of HK$82,000. The tenancy agreement
was for a term of three years commenced from 1 April 2010 and
renewable up to year 2028 on every 5 years. The total amount of
rent paid for the year by the Group in respect of this agreement was
HK$984,000.

BEROIESF 2R H

BB AR A B RS RS B M 28 B A AT
5N ARRIHEEAH B AR R FABE
SEEAZE RARRERAEBALRLR
BIREMAR 2B HESF M-

BYFHITESZER

ARREEEZHIFATESTSARE L
ZHERE RAEANEGBIMES EHRRA
(TETARBN)E3ABMEREZ B K
RARA 2RBUFNTESFHARBIA
+o

EEREARGHzEaRAE

R

FEREXHEERAA ([FER])  ALQF
ZEERANBAR  HEEHFRAQFRL
—EEY - BEERAFREMKRE (AR
AzETERR)Z2EHREMBLAR  RIEZ
M) BEER AR SN EEM T
AR ERFREREAEZ SO AT
BEfm - A7H82,0008 L %A T —F
FOA—B%K REBFRERESFEN
BEE_T ) N\F-AKERZBEORATFER
T 2 T & #8 58 /3984,00078 7T °
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Directors’ Report

Directors’ Interests in Contracts of
Significance and Connected
Transactions (continued)

Allan Plastics Mfg., Limited (“APML”), a wholly-owned subsidiary
of the Company, entered into a tenancy agreement with Income
Village Limited, a wholly-owned subsidiary of AICL, pursuant to
which Income Village Limited granted to APML a tenancy in respect
of certain premises in Lilin Village, Zhongkai Hi-Tech Industrial
Development Zone, Huizhou City, the PRC at a monthly rent of
HK$17,000. The tenancy agreement was for a term of three years
commenced from 1 April 2011. The total amount of rent paid for the
year by the Group in respect of this agreement was HK$204,000.

Karan Electric Manufacturing Limited (“Karan”), a wholly-owned
subsidiary of the Company, entered into a tenancy agreement with
AICL, pursuant to which AICL granted to Karan a tenancy in respect
of certain premises in Lilin, Zhongkai Hi-Tech Industrial Development
Zone, Huizhou City, the PRC at a monthly rent of HK$75,000. The
tenancy agreement was for a term of 3 years commenced from 1
April 2011. The total amount of rent paid for the year by the Group in
respect of this agreement was HK$900,000.

HEHEESRELBERAT (EEHE") , a wholly foreign-owned
enterprise of the Company, entered into a tenancy agreement with
Mr. Cheung Pui, pursuant to which Mr. Cheung Pui granted to 2[5
## a tenancy in respect of certain premises in Lilin, Zhongkai Hi-
Tech Industrial Development Zone, Huizhou City, the PRC at a total
monthly rent of RMB45,000. This tenancy agreement was for a term
of 3 years commenced from 1 July 2011. The total amount of rent
paid for the year by the Group in respect of this agreement was
RMB540,000 (equivalent to HK$662,485).

The independent non-executive directors confirm that the
transactions have been entered into by the Company in the
ordinary course of its business, on normal commercial terms, and
in accordance with the terms of the agreement governing such
transactions that are fair and reasonable and in the interests of the
shareholders of the Company as a whole.

Other than as disclosed above, no contracts of significance to which
the Company or any of its subsidiaries was a party and in which a
director of the Company had a material interest, whether directly or
indirectly, subsisted at the end of the year or at any time during the
year.
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Directors’ Report

Emolument Policy

The Company has set up a remuneration committee. The
remuneration committee is responsible for developing the
remuneration policy and reviewing the remuneration packages of
the directors and senior management and make recommendations
to the Board which are determined by reference to the performance
of the individuals, the Group, market practices and conditions with
a view to retain and motivate executives to pursue the Group’s
operation.

Substantial Shareholders

So far is known to any director or chief executive of the Company,
at 31 March 2013, shareholders (other than directors or chief
executives of the Company) who had interests or short positions in
the shares or underlying shares of the Company which would fall
to be disclosed to the Company under the provisions of Divisions 2
and 3 of Part XV of the SFO, or which were recorded in the register
required to be kept by the Company under Section 336 of the SFO
or had otherwise notified to the Company were as follows:

Long positions of substantial shareholders in the shares of
the Company

Name of shareholder Capacity
BRR & 514
Credit Suisse Trust Limited Trustee
fEFEA
UAL Held by controlled corporation

Pzl c RERA

Beneficial Owner

EmlEAA
AICL Beneficial Owner
TREE EmlEAA

I BUR

ARAIERUFTHEES FMHEZBEERE
HEHFMBRE RN EFESREERE L
TR YRMEFRRIED HRMENET
ZRB-AEBZRE MHEH RHRE
EoBRBERERHHETHERARE
WA

FERR

AARREERESTHRABRN R-F
—ZF=ZA=1+—H RERFRMKIEHA
B P A RBES MR GROIFEXVEEF2
K 37 BBV IR SCA M A R B B R S AR R
RRBIRES R ERGIEIBHREFNE
MRk E e RARNERIAE Z KR
(RAREZHHZTHRABRIN T

FTERRRAEDIARDZHER

Approximate

Number of % of
ordinary shares shareholding
tREZ

EBRER G BAE
149,049,960 44.44%
142,479,960 42.48%
6,570,000 1.96%
134,821,960 40.19%
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Directors’ Report

Substantial Shareholders (continveq)

Long positions of substantial shareholders in the shares of
the Company (Continued)

Name of shareholder Capacity

BRER gt

Beneficial Owner
EnBEAA
Held by controlled corporation

FEHl 2 ARRA

Webb, David Michael

Beneficial Owner
BEmBEAA

Preferable Situation Assets Limited

Note:

The reference to 26,886,000 shares above are held by Preferable Situation
Assets Limited, a company 100% controlled by Mr. Webb, David Michael.
According to a notice filed pursuant to Part XV of the SFO, the shareholding
of Preferable Situation Assets Limited in the Company was increased from
26,826,000 shares to 26,886,000 shares.

Save as disclosed above, as at 31 March 2013, the Company
has not been notified by any persons (other than directors or chief
executives of the Company) who had interests or short positions in
the shares or underlying shares of the Company which would fall
to be disclosed to the Company under the provisions of Divisions 2
and 3 of Part XV of the SFO, or which were recorded in the register
required to be kept by the Company under Section 336 of the SFO.

FERRKR (2

TERRRADARDZHR (&)

Approximate

Number of % of
ordinary shares shareholding
tREZ
ERRRD BABEH
6,726,000 2.01%
26,826,000 7.99%
(Note)
(Htet)
26,886,000 8.02%
(Note)
(Hfit)

Wiz -

il BT 4R K #926,886,0008% f% 15 B Webb, David
Michael %t 4 & # 15 | Z Preferable Situation
Assets LimitediF A o R 45 H 1% B3 & 5 ] S XVED
FT2 Z 840 Preferable Situation Assets Limited
AR R T H A 2 IR 1% H26,826,000/% 18 in &=
26,886,000[% °
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Donations

During the year, the Group made charitable and other donations
amounting to approximately HK$395,000.

Corporate Governance

The Company is committed to maintaining a high standard of
corporate governance practices. Information on the corporate
governance practices of the Company is set out in the “Corporate
Governance Report” on pages 24 to 33.

Pre-Emptive Rights
There are no provisions for pre-emptive rights under the Company’s

Bye-laws, or the laws in Bermuda, which would oblige the Company
to offer new shares on a pro-rata basis to existing shareholders.

Sufficiency of Public float

Based on information that is publicly available to the Company and
within the knowledge of its directors, the directors confirm that the
Company has maintained a sufficient public float throughout the year
ended 31 March 2013 as required by the Listing Rules.

Auditor

A resolution will be submitted to the annual general meeting to
re-appoint Messrs. Deloitte Touche Tohmatsu as auditor of the
Company.

On behalf of the Board

Cheung Lun
Chairman

Hong Kong, 24 June 2013

FRAEEGL TESNEMEE 2 BRD
£395,000/8 JT °
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Corporate Governance Report

The Company recognizes that good corporate governance is vital
to the success of the Group and the sustained development of the
Group. The Company aims at complying with, where appropriate, all
code provisions set out in Appendix 14 Corporate Governance Code
(the “CG Code”) of the Rules Governing the Listing of Securities on
The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited (“Listing Rules”).

The Company’s corporate governance practices are based on the
principles and the code provisions (“Code Provisions”) as set out in
the CG Code of the Listing Rules. The Company has, throughout
the year ended 31 March 2013 and up to the date of publication
of the annual report, applied and complied with most of the Code
Provisions save certain deviations from the Code Provisions in
respect of code provisions A4.1, A.4.2, A5.1, A.6.7 and E.1.2
details of which are explained below.

Directors’ Securities Transactions

The Company has adopted the Model Code for Securities
Transactions by Directors of Listed Company (the “Model Code”)
as set out in Appendix 10 of the Listing Rules. The Company has
made specific enquiry to all Directors regarding any non-compliance
with the Model Code during the year under review and they have all
confirmed that they had fully complied with the required standard set
out in the Model Code.

Board of Directors

The Board comprises of five Executive Directors, being Mr. Cheung
Lun (Chairman), Mr. Cheung Shu Wan (Managing Director), Ms.
Cheung Lai Chun, Maggie, Ms. Cheung Lai See, Sophie and Mr.
Cheung Pui; three Independent Non-executive Directors, being Dr.
Chan How Chun, Mr. Lai Ah Ming, Leon and Professor Lo Chung
Mau. Biographical details, which include relationships among
members of the Board, are provided in the “Directors and Senior
Management” section of the annual report.
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Board of Directors (continueq)

There is a clear division of responsibilities between the Board and
the management. The Board is responsible for providing high-level
guidance and effective oversight of the management while day-to-
day management of the Group is delegated to the management
team of each respective subsidiary. Generally speaking, the Board is
responsible for:

° Formulating the Group’s long term strategy and monitoring the
implementation thereof

° Approval of interim and year end dividend

° Reviewing and approving the annual and interim reports
° Ensuring good corporate governance and compliance

° Monitoring the performance of the management

° Reviewing and approving any material acquisition and assets
disposal

The Board authorises the management to carry out the strategies
that have been approved.

The Board meets regularly at least four times a year and additional
meetings or telephone conferences are convened as and when the
Board considers necessary. During the year, eight board meetings
were held. Details of the Directors’ attendance record in the year are
as follows:

Attendance/

Executive Directors No. of meeting

Mr. Cheung Lun 8/8
Mr. Cheung Shu Wan 8/8
Ms. Cheung Lai Chun, Maggie 8/8
Ms. Cheung Lai See, Sophie 8/8
Mr. Cheung Pui 8/8

Independent Non-executive Directors

Dr. Chan How Chun 6/8
Mr. Lai Ah Ming, Leon 8/8
Professor Lo Chung Mau 6/8
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Board of Directors (continueq)

The Company has complied with the Rules 3.10(1) and (2) of
the Listing Rules relating to the appointment of at least three
independent Non-executive Directors and one of the Independent
Non-executive Directors has appropriate professional qualifications
or accounting or related finance management expertise. Each
of the Independent Non-executive Director has made an annual
confirmation of independence pursuant to Rule 3.13 of the
Listing Rules. The Company is of the view that all Independent
Non-executive Directors meet the independence guidelines set out
in Rule 3.13 of the Listing Rules.

The Company has arranged for Directors and officers liability
insurance to indemnity its Directors against liabilities arising out
of corporate activities. The insurance coverage is reviewed on an
annual basis.

Chairman and Chief Executive

The Board considered that the duties of the Managing Director
(“MD”) were no different from that required of a chief executive
stipulated under the code provision A.2 of the Code. The
management would regard that the term MD will have the same
meaning as the chief executive of the Company.

The Chairman of the Board is an Executive Director, who is
responsible for the leadership and effective running of the Board,
and ensuring that all significant and key issues are discussed and
where required, resolved by the Board timely and constructively.

The MD of the Board is delegated with the authority and
responsibility to run the Group’s business and day-to-day operation,
and implement the Group’s strategy with respect to the achievement
of its business objectives with the assistance of the Executive
Directors and senior management.
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Appointment and Re-election of
Directors

Code Provision A.4.1 stipulates that non-executive directors should
be appointed for a specific term, subject to re-election.

Currently, none of the three independent non-executive directors
of the Company is appointed for a specific term. This constitutes
a deviation from the CG Code. In accordance with the provisions
of the Bye-laws of the Company, any director appointed by the
Board during the year shall retire and submit themselves for re-
election at the first general meeting immediately following his/her
appointment. Further, at each annual general meeting, one-third of
the directors for the time being, or if their number is not three or
multiple of three, then the number nearest to but not exceeding one-
third, shall retire from office. The directors to retire by rotation shall
be those who have been longest in office since their last re-election
or appointment. As such, the Company considers that sufficient
measures have been taken to ensure that the Company’s corporate
governance practices are similar to those in the CG Code.

Code Provision A.4.2 stipulates that all directors appointed to fill a
casual vacancy should be subject to election by shareholders at the
next following annual general meeting after their appointment, and
every director, including those appointed for a specific term, should
be subject to retirement by rotation at least once every three years.

According to the Bye-laws of the Company, the Chairman and/or
Managing Director is not subject to retirement by rotation or taken
into account on determining the number of Directors to retire. This
constitutes a deviation from the CG Code. As continuation is a key
factor to the successful implementation of any long term business
plans, the Board believes that, the present arrangement is most
beneficial to the Company and the Shareholders as a whole.
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Directors’ Training

All Directors participate in continuous professional development to
develop and refresh their knowledge and skills. This is to ensure
that their contribution to the Board remains informed and relevant.
All Directors participate in appropriate continuous professional
development activities by ways of attending training or reading
material relevant to the Company’s business or to the Directors’
duties and responsibilities. During the year ended 31 March 2013,
the Company has provided an update on the latest development
and changes of the Listing Rules, applicable laws, rules and
regulations relating to Directors’ duties and responsibilities to each
of Mr. Cheung Lun, Mr. Cheung Shu Wan, Ms. Cheung Lai Chun,
Maggie, Ms. Cheung Lai See, Sophie, Mr. Cheung Pui, Dr. Chan
How Chun, Mr. Lai Ah Ming, Leon and Professor Lo Chung Mau to
keep themselves update on the roles, functions and duties of a listed
company director.

Audit Committee

The Audit Committee was established in 1999 and comprises
three Board members, all of whom are Independent Non-executive
Directors. The Audit Committee has adopted the same term
of reference, which describes the authority and duties of the
Committee, as quoted under code provision C.3.3 of the CG Code.

The Audit Committee will meet at least twice each year. During the
year, the Audit Committee met twice considering the annual results
of the Group for the financial year ended 31 March 2013 and the
interim results of the Group for the 6 months ended 30 September
2012, assessing any changes in accounting policies and practices,
major judgmental areas and compliance with applicable legal and
accounting requirements and standards, discussing with the auditor
of the Company on internal control.

Details of Committee members and their attendance records are
listed as below:

Attendance/

Committee member No. of meeting

Dr. Chan How Chun (Chairman) 2/2
Mr. Lai Ah Ming Leon 2/2
Professor Lo Chung Mau 2/2

EEERWRE

251

PIBEFH2MBEFEXREI EERER
BEO B L EE - LB REREFAERT
DRBMBEESIELERER - 2RERE
B2 EEAR B RBABETRS R
BEERBEER BOEFHFESXRR -BE
ZE-ZF=ZA=+—RHILFE KRR
FRMmAEL - REREL REZ XL  REH
Tt RIERE REREL REALLENE
EAHBRRHEMLTRAIRHERLES
BREFERELBENERER RAIRER
MRHER NERREZERBLTARE
ENAE BRERETNEHEM:-

BEREES

ERZEGERN-NANFRL KEBRE
—REFENE E2HMARBUIIFNTE
F-BEFECRMEETARXCIIAHE
BRREECREABENAZE G ZHER
o

BERZESRBFELARGEMR-F
N BRLZESARMASH AEBELAE
EHE T =F=A=t—HIMBFE
ZEFEEMBE_ZE-_FNAA=+HIE
NEA R ERE  SHE SRR RER
TEs T2HEHBBELELETERE
RNMEFHRE LR - LA K BN B AZ BUAD
TR BB BRI AETT AT A o

THAZERKEREREDE:

HE/
ZEEHE 2ERY
MEFEEL (FE) 2/2
WAL E 2/2
EEEHR 2/2



Annual Report 2012/2013 —Z2——FZ =8 —=FF#f

Corporate Governance Report

Remuneration Committee

The Remuneration Committee was established on 12 March 2012
with written terms of reference as stated in Code B.1.3 of the
Appendix 14 of the Listing Rules. The Remuneration Committee
consists of three members, majority of which are Independent Non-
Executive Directors. Mr. Lai Ah Ming, Leon, being an Independent
Non-Executive Director, acts as the chairman. Dr. Chan How Chun,
an Independent Non-Executive Director and Ms. Cheung Lai See,
Sophie, an Executive Director, are the Committee Members.

The Remuneration Committee is responsible for ensuring formal
and transparent procedures for developing remuneration policies
and overseeing the remuneration packages of all Directors and
senior management. The Remuneration Committee makes
recommendation to the Board for the determination of the
remuneration packages of all Executive Directors and senior
management, including benefits in kind, pension rights and
compensation payments, including any compensation payable
for loss or termination of their office or appointment, and make
recommendations to the Board for the directors’ fee of non-
executive directors. It takes into account factors such as salaries
paid by comparable companies with similar size and trade,
education background and qualification of each Director and senior
management, time commitment and responsibilities of Directors and
senior management.

During the year, the Remuneration Committee has held 1 meeting.
Attendance of each individual member was as follows:

Attendance/

Committee member No. of meeting

Mr. Lai Ah Ming, Leon (Chairman) 1/1
Dr. Chan How Chun 11
Ms. Cheung Lai See, Sophie 11

Details on the emolument payable to the Directors and the
Company’s share option scheme are disclosed in notes 9 and 28 to
the consolidated financial statements respectively.
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Nomination of Directors

Code Provision A.5.1 stipulates that the Company should establish
a nomination committee. Currently, the Company does not
have a nomination committee. The Board will identify individuals
suitably qualified to become board members when necessary. The
Board will give due consideration to the suitability of a candidate
for directorship after taking into account of his/her experience,
qualification and other relevant factors. All candidates must also
meet the standards as set forth in Rules 3.08 and 3.09 of the Listing
Rules. A candidate who is to be appointed as an Independent Non-
executive Director should also meet the independence criteria set
out in Rule 3.13 of the Listing Rules.

Corporate Governance Functions

The Board is responsible to develop and review the Company’s
policies and practices on corporate governance; review and monitor
the training and continuous professional development of Directors
and senior management; review and monitor the Company’s policies
and practices on compliance with legal and regulatory requirements;
review and monitor the code of conduct applicable to employees
and Directors; and review the Company’s compliance with the CG
Code and disclosure in the Corporate Governance Report.

Company Secretary

Ms. Wong Lai Yung joined the Company since 2006 and was
appointed as the Company Secretary on 20 September 2012. Ms.
Wong is responsible to update and provide advice to the Board in
relation to directors’ obligations under the Listing Rules, applicable
laws and regulations, and corporate governance matters. Ms. Wong
has provided her training records to the Company indicating her
compliance with the training requirement under Rule 3.29 of the
Listing Rules. Ms. Wong’s biographical details are provided in the
“Directors and Senior Management” section of the annual report.
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Director’s Responsibilities for the
Financial Statement

The Board acknowledges that it is their responsibility for (i)
overseeing the preparation of the financial statements of the Group
with a view to ensuring such financial statements give a true and
fair view of the state of affairs of the Group and (i) selecting suitable
accounting policies and applying the selected accounting policies
consistently with the support of reasonable and prudent judgement
and estimates.

A statement by the auditors about their reporting responsibilities is
set out on pages 34 to 35 of this Annual Report.

Auditor’s Remuneration

During the year under review, the remuneration payable to the
Company’s auditors, Deloitte Touche Tohmatsu, is set out as
follows:

Services rendered Fees payable

HK$'000

Audit services 1,959
Non-audit services

Review of interim results 291

Taxation services 272

Audit of occupational retirement scheme 23

Internal Controls

The Board has the ultimate responsibility to maintain a sound and
effective internal control system for the Group to safeguard the
interests of shareholders and the Group as a whole and to ensure
strict compliance with relevant laws, rules and regulations. The
Audit Committee is responsible for reviewing the effectiveness of the
internal control system and reporting to the Board.
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Internal Controls (continueq)

The Group’s internal control system comprises a well established
organisational structure and comprehensive policies and standards.
Areas of responsibilities for each business and functional unit are
clearly defined to ensure effective checks and balances. Procedures
have been designed for safeguarding assets against unauthorised
use or disposition; for maintaining proper accounting records; and
for ensuring the reliability of financial information used within the
business or for publication. The procedures provide reasonable
but not absolute assurance against material errors, losses or fraud.
Procedures have also been designed to ensure compliance with
applicable laws, rules and regulations.

During the year, the Audit Committee and the Board carried out an
overview on the effectiveness of the internal control system of the
Group. The review covers all material controls, including financial,
operational and compliance controls and risk management functions
of the Group. No material internal control aspects of any significant
problems were noted. Both the Audit Committee and the Board
were satisfied that the internal control system of the Group had
functioned effectively during the year under review. During the
annual review, the audit committee also reviewed the adequacy
of resources, qualifications and experience of staff of the Group’s
accounting and financial reporting function.

Shareholders’ Rights

On the requisition of shareholders of the Company holding not less
than one-tenth of the paid-up capital of the Company, the Board
may convene a special general meeting to address specific issues
of the Company within 21 days from the date of deposit of written
notice to the registered office of the Company. The requisition must
state the purposes of the meeting, and must be signed by the
requisitionist(s).

Shareholders holding not less than one-twentieth of the total voting
rights of all the shareholders or not less than 100 shareholders may
propose any resolution at the annual general meeting and circulate
to other shareholders written statement with respect to the matter to
be dealt with at the annual general meeting.

Shareholders may send their enquiries requiring the Board’s
attention to the Company Secretary at the Company’s principal
office address at 12/F, Zung Fu Industrial Building, 1067 King’s
Road, Quarry Bay, Hong Kong.
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Communication with Shareholders

The Company regards its Annual General Meeting as an opportunity
for direct communication between the Board and its shareholders.
All Directors and external auditors make an effort to attend the
Annual General Meeting to address shareholders’ queries. The
Company also responds to requests for information and queries
from the shareholders and investors and welcomes the views of
shareholders on matter affecting the Group and encourages them
to attend shareholders’ meeting to communicate any concerns they
might have with the Board.

Code Provision A.6.7 stipulates that, independent non-executive
directors and other non-executive directors shall attend general
meetings and develop a balanced understanding of the views of
shareholders.

Two independent non-executive directors, Dr. Chan How Chun and
Professor Lo Chung Mau, did not attend the annual general meeting
of the Company held on 8 August 2012 due to other business
engagements.

Code Provision E.1.2 stipulates that the chairman of the Board
and the chairman of the Audit Committee should attend the annual
general meeting. Both the Chairman of the Board and the Chairman
of the Audit Committee had not attended the annual general
meeting of the Company held on 8 August 2012. The Chairmen
will endeavour to attend all future annual general meetings of the
Company unless unexpected or special circumstances prevent them
from doing so.
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Independent Auditor’s Report

Deloitte.
=20

TO THE MEMBERS OF
ALLAN INTERNATIONAL HOLDINGS LIMITED
(incorporated in Bermuda with limited liability)

We have audited the consolidated financial statements of Allan
International Holdings Limited (the “Company”) and its subsidiaries
(collectively referred to as the “Group”) set out on pages 36 to
123, which comprise the consolidated statement of financial
position as at 31 March 2013, and the consolidated statement
of comprehensive income, consolidated statement of changes in
equity and consolidated statement of cash flows for the year then
ended, and a summary of significant accounting policies and other
explanatory information.

Directors’ Responsibility for the
Consolidated Financial Statements

The directors of the Company are responsible for the preparation
of consolidated financial statements that give a true and fair view in
accordance with Hong Kong Financial Reporting Standards issued
by the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants and the
disclosure requirements of the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance,
and for such internal control as the directors determine is necessary
to enable the preparation of consolidated financial statements that
are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.
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Auditor’s Responsibility

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on these consolidated
financial statements based on our audit and to report our opinion
solely to you, as a body, in accordance with Section 90 of the
Bermuda Companies Act, and for no other purpose. We do not
assume responsibility towards or accept liability to any other
person for the contents of this report. We conducted our audit
in accordance with Hong Kong Standards on Auditing issued by
the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants. Those
standards require that we comply with ethical requirements and
plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about
whether the consolidated financial statements are free from material
misstatement.

An audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence
about the amounts and disclosures in the consolidated financial
statements. The procedures selected depend on the auditor’s
judgment, including the assessment of the risks of material
misstatement of the consolidated financial statements, whether
due to fraud or error. In making those risk assessments, the auditor
considers internal control relevant to the entity’s preparation of
consolidated financial statements that give a true and fair view
in order to design audit procedures that are appropriate in the
circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion
on the effectiveness of the entity’s internal control. An audit also
includes evaluating the appropriateness of accounting policies
used and the reasonableness of accounting estimates made by
the directors, as well as evaluating the overall presentation of the
consolidated financial statements.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and
appropriate to provide a basis for our audit opinion.

Opinion

In our opinion, the consolidated financial statements give a true and
fair view of the state of affairs of the Group as at 31 March 2013,
and of the Group’s profit and cash flows for the year then ended
in accordance with Hong Kong Financial Reporting Standards and
have been properly prepared in accordance with the disclosure
requirements of the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance.

Deloitte Touche Tohmatsu
Certified Public Accountants
Hong Kong

24 June 2013
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Consolidated Statement of Comprehensive Income

For the year ended 31 March 2013

Revenue
Cost of sales

Gross profit

Other income

Other gains and losses

Selling and distribution expenses

Administrative expenses

Increase in fair value of investment
properties

Interest on bank borrowings

Profit before tax
Income tax expense

Profit for the year attributable to owners
of the Company

Other comprehensive income

Exchange differences arising on
translation

Net adjustments on available-for-sale
investments

Gain on revaluation

Deferred tax liability arising on
gain on revaluation

Other comprehensive income for
the year, net of income tax

BXRE
&R

E7

H W as
Hofth 22 7| K% &5 18

5 & K o> §H AR AR
TR AR
BREWMEZ R EEEN

RITEFH R

BR B¢ B s 7
PR HE R 32

REEADERERAREEALZ

ikl

Ht 2 H WS
BEE2IER ELER

AR ERE 2 HEFE
BHEAR

REfZBNMELEZ
EFETIR

N 2 A 2 M
P FUA

Total comprehensive income for the year A [E 2 MUK 5B

Earnings per share
Basic

SmeEZHWRER

HE—_Z—=F=A=t+—HIFE

2013 2012

—E—=fF —ET——F

Notes HK$°000 HK$'000
B aE FExT FHET
7 2,356,362 2,416,920
(2,072,739) (2,105,080)

283,623 311,840

8 8,346 6,717
10 (5,625) (7,970)
(38,044) (37,743)
(143,347) (137,671)

31,111 20,747
(2,934) (2,469)

133,130 153,451
71 (24,304) (26,314)
12 108,826 127,137
6,335 9,666
(56) (597)

- 17,638
- (5,346)

6,279 21,361

115,105 148,498

14

HK32.4 cents #1ll HK37.9 cents
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Consolidated Statement of Financial Position

At 31 March 2013

Non-current assets

Investment properties

Property, plant and equipment

Prepaid lease payments

Club debentures

Available-for-sale investments

Financial assets designated at fair
value through profit or loss (“FVTPL”)

Deposits paid for acquisition of
property, plant and equipment

Current assets

Inventories

Trade receivables and bills receivable
Other receivables

Mould deposits paid

Prepaid lease payments
Available-for-sale investments
Financial assets designated at FVTPL

Tax recoverable

Time deposits and deposits placed
with banks and financial institutions

Bank balances and cash

Current liabilities

Trade payables and bills payable
Other payables and accruals
Mould deposits received
Tax payable
Secured bank loans

— due within one year

Net current assets

Total assets less current liabilities

FRBEE

BEWME

ER VNS G S

BNEEA

SRES

AR ERE

FRBRRATEEZ
MBEE
ENBEME BEK

RiBE &

MEEE

(Ea

FEWE 5 BR 7k K B IR 1%
Hfth & U5 B K
EfNEATE

BN HERIA
AHHERE

FRBRRATEAEZ
MBEE

FERFIA
EHMERRERRTR
TR TR
RITREFEREAS

mEAE

e B SR NN R &

H Al FE A5 B R N B AN AR AN

BERERTTE

e B IR

HIRRITE K
——FREH

MEEEFE
BEERRBEE

Notes

Kt

15
16
17
18
19

20

21
22
22

17
19
20

23
238

24

25

2013 2012
—E2—= —E——4F
HK$’000 HK$'000
FHET FET
242,100 210,989
397,277 406,419
27,835 28,185
13,866 13,866
12,467 8,561
5,342 6,565
2,878 10,135
701,765 684,720
85,888 93,781
517,386 509,353
128,335 107,334
18,563 22,245
706 693
3,096 —

- 1,513

962 2,210
139,377 169,683
159,261 188,700
1,053,574 1,095,512
334,825 384,420
175,090 182,108
34,052 35,094
41,468 41,251
54,129 33,779
639,564 676,652
414,010 418,860
1,115,775 1,103,580
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Consolidated Statement of Financial Position

At 31 March 2013

Non-current liabilities ERBEE
Deferred tax liabilities IR AE I8
Secured bank loans IR ITE K

- due after one year ——F1&EIH

Net assets BEFE

Capital and reserves BEAR K EE
Share capital fi& 7
Reserves 1

The consolidated financial statements on pages 36 to 123 were
approved and authorised for issue by the Board of Directors on 24
June 2013 and are signed on its behalf by:

Cheung Lai Chun, Maggie
REY
Director

EBEF

e AR R

R-ZZE—=F=A=+—H

2013 2012

—EB—-=F —E——4F

Notes HK$’000 HK$'000
Htat TFHET FET
26 17,719 16,185
25 91,528 145,657
109,247 161,842

1,006,528 941,738

27 33,543 33,543
972,985 908,195

1,006,528 941,738

BN EICE R 1283B VA BHRER
CE-=FENAtTHAEEESH:

=RV
BRE

BIRE YHNIEFREREE:

Cheung Lai See, Sophie
REEHT
Director

EBEF



Consolidated Statement of Changes in Equity

For the year ended 31 March 2013

At 1 April 2011

Profit for the year

Gain on revaluation

Deferred tax liability arising on
gain on revaluation

Exchange difference arising on
translation

Fair value loss on avallable-for-sale
investments

Investment revaluation reserve
released on disposal of
available-for-sale investments

Other comprehensive (expense)
income for the year

Total comprehensive income
for the year

R=Z2-—-FmA-A
RERRT

EfERA
REGHRAFEELZ
BREHE
BEEZHIRE
EXEE
AHHERERATE
ZBB
RAERFHENE
A EREREN

Dividend proposed for 2012 (note 13) #ik% —E——FK 8

Dividends recognised as
distribution (note 13)

At 31 March 2012 and 1 April 2012

Profit for the year

Exchange difference arising on
translation

Fair value gain on available-for-sale
investments

Investment revaluation reserve
released on disposal of
available-for-sale investments

Other comprehensive (expense)
income for the year

(Hit13)
AR RZIRE
(Hit13)

WZZ-Z%
ZA=+-8k
—E-ZF@A-H

RER G

BEEZ5IREY
EXER
AHHERERATEL
&M
REBHERRNE

A HERARSEN

REFAMEE
(52 s

Total comprehensive (expense) income A E 2 & (i)

for the year

gt

Dividend proposed for 2013 (note 13) BKE=F—=FK S

Dividends recognised as
distribution (note 13

At 31 March 2013

(Hi#13)
RIEDTELZ RS
(Hi#13)

RZT-=4=f=+-H

Annual Report 2012/2013 —E——FZ_ZF—=FF

mEREBER

HE_T—=F=A=+—HILFE

Capital  Investment Property
Share Share redemption  revaluation  revaluation  Translation Dividend Retained
capital premium reserve reserve reserve reserve reserve profits Total
(3 TN RE& mx
BA& wER RERE EMEE  EMRE  ERRE  RERE  REEA Lt
HKS000  HK$000  HK$000  HK$O00  HKSU0O0O — HKSO00 — HKSOO0  HKSO00  HK$000
FET FET TAT FET FET FET FET FET FET
33,543 109,884 793 1,388 - 23,859 50,315 632,159 851,941
- - - - - - - 127,137 127,137
- - - - 17,638 - - - 17,638
_ - - = (5,346) - - = (6,346)
- - - - - 9,666 - - 9,666
- - - (108) - - - - (108)
- - - (489) - - - - (489)
- - - (597) 12,292 9,666 - - 21,361
- - - (597) 12,292 9,666 - 127,137 148,498
_ _ - - = - 41,929 (41,929) =
- - - - - - (50,315) (8,386) (58,701)
33,543 109,884 793 791 12,292 33,525 41,929 708,981 941,738
- - - - - - - 108,826 108,826
- - - - - 6,335 - - 6,335
- - - 344 - - - - 344
- - - (400) - - - - (400)
- - - (56) - 6,335 - - 6,279
- - - (56) - 6,335 - 108,826 115,105
- - - - - - 34,550 (34,550) -
_ _ - = = - (41,929) (8,386) (50,315)
33,543 109,884 793 735 12,292 39,860 34,550 774,871 1,006,528
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Consolidated Statement of Cash Flows

For the year ended 31 March 2013

OPERATING ACTIVITIES
Profit before tax
Adjustments for:

Amortisation of prepaid lease payments
Depreciation of property, plant and equipment

Increase in fair value changes of
investment properties

Interest expenses

Interest income

Net gain on disposal of
available-for-sale investments

Net gain on financial assets designated at

FVTPL

Gain on disposal of property, plant and

equipment

Write-off of property, plant and equipment

Operating cash flows before movements

in working capital
Decrease (increase) in inventories

(Increase) decrease in trade receivables and

bills receivable
Increase in other receivables

Decrease (increase) in mould deposits paid
(Decrease) increase in trade payables and

bills payable

Decrease in other payables and accruals
(Decrease) increase in mould deposits received

Cash generated from operations
Hong Kong Profits Tax paid

The People’s Republic of China (the “PRC”)

enterprise income tax paid

NET CASH FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES

mEBE

~

ARER

HE—_Z—=F=A=t+—HIFE

2013 2012
—EB—-=5F —E——4F
HK$’000 HK$ 000
FET FET

ST
FR %2 A1 g ) 133,130 153,451

T T & IR 5 706 809

M HWERSZB2ITE 74,746 54,096

WEWEZ N FEHREIE N

(31,111) (20,747)

FEZ T 2,934 2,469

F B A (1,847) (1,275)

HERHHERERFFE

(400) (489)

BRBREREATENE VB EE

AR FRE (672) (228)
LEWHE  WFE K& #E2&F
(537) (1,773)

BRI - BB &R 95 2,597

HEEFHA 2 KERENE

177,044 188,910
FER D () 7,893 (6,367)
FEWE 5 R R EWERR (3E0)

Vs (8,033) 7,319
A JE U BR 3 N (21,001) (48,927)
ENEAEZESE D (M) 3,682 (12,102)
ENESEFRREMNER ORL)

N (50,494) 132,287
HAth B 5 BR B R B R AR A (7,018) (13,959)
BUWEEZS (R4 )8 m (1,042) 10,330
REXBEE RS 101,031 257,491
ENBEBFER (15,599) (20,168)
EfTREARLAME ([FE])

ERERH (5,706) (9,423)
RETHRMEEZ2EHSFE 79,726 227,900
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AERERNER

Consolidated Statement of Cash Flows

For the year ended 31 March 2013

HE—_2—=

F—A=1t—BILFE

2013 2012
—E—=F —E——-F
HK$’000 HK$'000
FET FET
INVESTING ACTIVITIES REED
Withdrawal of time deposits and deposits REVE TR RGFERIRITR
placed with banks and financial institutions & REE TR 286,022 195,304
Proceeds on redemption of financial assets at BRI A FBERIEAFEFEZ
FVTPL M EEZFIE 3,375 -
Interest received BEUF B 1,847 1,275
Proceeds on disposal of property, HEME  WE R REFEHIE
plant and equipment 1,803 1,894
Investment income from financial BREREATEAEZ
assets at FVTPL =ERA 33 -
Placement of time deposits and deposits placed 17 E HF R R 1F R R1T R
with banks and financial institutions T RS (255,716) (152,270)
Purchases of property, plant and equipment EEWE BWEKLZE (50,864) (151,240)
Purchases of financial assets at FVTPL BAZBEREATETEZ
& E = (3,133)
Deposits paid for acquisition of property, ENBEYE BEREHT©
plant and equipment (2,878) (10,135)
Purchases of available-for-sale investments BEAHEERE (6,658) (1,556)
Purchase of an investment property BEREME = (137,296)
Additions of prepaid lease payments TE {5 70 & FRIA L AN - (8,102)
Proceeds on disposal/redemption of HE EE A HHERE
available-for-sale investments - 4,004
NET CASH USED IN INVESTING ACTIVITIES  REZFBFMERSFE (23,036) (261,255)
FINANCING ACTIVITIES MEEE
Repayment of borrowings BEFEE (84,779) (19,965)
Dividend paid EARE (50,315) (58,701)
Interest paid EAIFIE (2,934) (2,469)
New bank borrowings raised HIBIRITER 51,000 198,850
NET CASH (USED IN) FROM FINANCING MEEE () 8RR
ACTIVITIES (87,028) 117,715
NET (DECREASE) INCREASE IN CASH AND HeRESEE (HD)EMEEHE
CASH EQUIVALENTS (30,338) 84,360
CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS REDZEERBESEEER
AT BEGINNING OF THE YEAR 188,700 104,340
EFFECT OF FOREIGN EXCHANGE RATE IMEEZZ{HNTE
CHANGES 899 —
CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS REZZEESRESEE
AT END OF THE YEAR, represented by HB HERBITEFERERES
bank balances and cash 159,261 188,700
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
For the year ended 31 March 2013

General

The Company is incorporated in Bermuda as an exempted
company with limited liability and its shares are listed on
The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited (the “Stock
Exchange”). The immediate holding company is Allan
Investment Co. Limited, a private company incorporated in
Hong Kong; and its ultimate holding company is Credit Suisse
Trust Limited, who is a trustee of The Cheung Lun Family Trust
(“Trust”) and the discretionary beneficiaries of the Trust are,
among other family members, the directors of the Company,
Mr. Cheung Shu Wan, Ms. Cheung Lai Chun, Maggie and Ms.
Cheung Lai See, Sophie. The addresses of the registered office
and principal place of business of the Company are disclosed
in the Corporate Information section of the annual report.

The Company acts as an investment holding company and
provides corporate management services to its subsidiaries.
The principal activities of its subsidiaries are manufacture and
distribution of household electrical appliances.

The consolidated financial statements are presented in Hong
Kong dollars (“HK$”), which is also the functional currency of
the Company.

Application of New And Revised
Hong Kong Financial Reporting
Standards (“HKFRSs”)

Amendments to HKFRSs applied in current year

In the current year, the Group has applied the following
amendments to HKFRSs issued by the Hong Kong Institute of
Certified Public Accountants (“HKICPA”).

Amendments to Financial Instruments: Disclosures —

HKFRS 7 Transfers of Financial Assets

The Group has early adopted the amendments to HKAS 12
“Deferred Tax: Recovery of Underlying Assets” in prior year.

The application of the amendments to HKFRSs in the current
year has had no material impact on the Group’s financial
performance and positions for the current and prior years and/
or on the disclosures set out in these consolidated financial
statements.

31

ES

e MR ESHE

—E-=E=A=t+—HIEE

=A
wes A

.

AARIRBREAMKIAZAR
ERAR-HROEEEBBMER S
BERAA L™ ([BRZFT]) - EEE
BRARIATmIEEBRAR REE
FE AR S ¢ B & 4% IR 2 7] & Credit
Suisse Trust Limited ' A& The Cheung
Lun Family Trust ([Trust ]) 215 A
TrustZ AT gEX 25 A (723 B fth X EERK
B)EARRIZESREBLELE RE
Pt RREBHiZ L - ARa S
Bzt R EEEMBRARER A
RIE R BB EE -

ARAREEBR AR RREHEEE
BRG EMBARNEIERBEARE

iR B MH R
bt

EETAABTINE  IFRA
AlZEER-

FER 3R] R AEIEF] B A
I ([ & BB H

W
i 56
I
i

FEERAEBMBREER ZET
B -AKEEBT NIAELSEE
R ([BEERE])BHELY
BmE R ZEFT

ERMBREERN SRTA - HKE-—SRE
HTHZIER] EBZ

AEECR LERRPERATEGE
AIFE125% EER IR : WEHEEE] 2
CHE
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HBAKRBAFERBEFREIMHRR
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
For the year ended 31 March 2013

2. Application of New And Revised
Hong Kong Financial Reporting
Standards (“HKFRSs”) (continueq)

New and revised HKFRSs issued but not yet effective

The Group has not early applied the following new and revised

HKFRSs that have been issued but are not yet effective:

Amendments to
HKFRSs

Amendments to
HKFRS 7
Amendments to HKFRS
9 and HKFRS 7
Amendments to HKFRS

10, HKFRS 11 and
HKFRS 12

Amendments to HKFRS

10, HKFRS 12 and

HKAS 27

HKFRS 9

HKFRS 10

HKFRS 11

HKFRS 12

HKFRS 13

Annual Improvements to HKFRSs
2009 - 2011 Cycle!

Disclosures — Offsetting Financial
Assets and Financial Liabilities'

Mandatory Effective Date of HKFRS 9
and Transition Disclosures?

Consolidated Financial Statements,
Joint Arrangements
and Disclosure of Interests in Other
Entities: Transition

Guidance'

Investment Entities*

Financial Instruments?
Consolidated Financial Statements'
Joint Arrangements!

Disclosure of Interests in Other

Entities’
Fair Value Measurement!

GRE MR ESHE

E-F-CFZA=t+—ALFE

;i3
%

H
=

DN E S CHIE )
%.j]:’t;ﬂu (BB KR
) @

i 24 3

EEMEHRERZHITREBTE
78 B 3% 8 2 A
AEEYEREFERATIE QMES
REBZHET RBETRETBHRE
]

ERPBIE
R/ Z{EFT

“EENFET——F
BERGERMBER
ERAZFRAE

EEMBHREE BE-SREEESRA
RIS 2 R EPAERIL:FL

BRMBRERER FEMBREEREN

FORBETH .  ZBRFEERBHLE
{E5T RN BB

BAMBRELER HKEMBRES HAZ
F105%  BRME  HREERHEGEREZ
WMERRENE B RERS
RBEBHBRE
ERIF125 2
4

BANBRELN KREER
£10%  BRMB
WERERIE12%

REBEBGFER
EOTHRZAEF]

BEANBRELED SpIA?
F9%

BAMBHRELER SKANBHREE
$10%

BAENBRELEL HEZH
F115

BEENBRELEN HERNEMEEOES
F125%

BAMBREEL ATEFE
$13%
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
For the year ended 31 March 2013

2. Application of New And Revised
Hong Kong Financial Reporting
Standards (“HKFRSs”) (continueq)

New and revised HKFRSs issued but not yet effective

(Continued)

Amendments to
HKAS 1

HKAS 19
(Revised 2011)

HKAS 27
(Revised 2011)

HKAS 28
(Revised 2011)

Amendments to
HKAS 32

HK(IFRIC) — Int 20

Presentation of ltems of Other
Comprehensive Income®
Employee Benefits'

Separate Financial Statements!

Investments in Associates and Joint
Ventures!

Offsetting Financial Assets and
Financial Liabilities*

Stripping Costs in the Production
Phase of a Surface Mine'

L Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January

2018.

2 Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January
2015.

S Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 July 2012.

. Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January
2014.

e MR ESHE

HE_T—=—F=A=1—HIFE

R RSB EEM
B &2 ([ FRMBER®

S281]) @)

EEMEHRERZHITREBTE
BMBHRELER (F)

A e &8 Hitt2EKRER 2251
E1R 2B

BBGHERE10% BERH
(2011 F&ER])

BERGTENER BUMBEREE
(2011 & 1E7])

BRGERNESY: RBEARREEREY
(0115 &EE]) KA

BB ERNERS: cREEHESHARZE
P+ HEHE 8¢

BE (BERMBERE BRBESEERBNE
ZBZE®) A
—ZEF205

! R-EB—=F—H-HxHERKZ
FEPBER-

2 R-F-—hF—-H-HBEERKZ
FREHMBER-

s R-Z——F+H-HXEZRKZ
FEHBER-

4 R-ZB—ME—H B HEERRZ
FEPBER-
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements 48 BTG $RE EMiEE
For the year ended 31 March 2013 HE—_ZET—=€=A=+—HIFE

Application of New And Revised
Hong Kong Financial Reporting
Standards (“HKFRSs”) (continued)

New and revised HKFRSs issued but not yet effective
(Continued)

Annual Improvements to HKFRSs 2009-2011 Cycle
issued in June 2012

The Annual Improvements to HKFRSs 2009 — 2011 Cycle
include a number of amendments to various HKFRSs.
Amendments to HKFRSs include the amendments to HKAS 16
Property, Plant and Equipment and the amendments to HKAS
32 Financial Instruments: Presentation.

The amendments to HKAS 16 clarify that spare parts, stand-
by equipment and servicing equipment should be classified as
property, plant and equipment when they meet the definition
of property, plant and equipment in HKAS 16 and as inventory
otherwise. The directors anticipate that the amendments to

AR RAEIERT B R
ﬁ“?&%i%,ﬁu (T B a5 3R

N
(#)

EEMERERER 2T REBITE
BMBHREER (F)
R-ZE—ZFANARMZ-—FENF
EoE—FHEZEBUBHREE
Rz FEXE
—EFNFE_F——FHEZEE

BB ER A FRUEBIRZTRE

B IRE LR (BT - BERMIBE]RE
8| (& aT)@?ﬁéf%ﬁ§+§%ﬁ'J%16?ﬁ
(B BERREREESG
ZEE'J%SQFE(f?ﬁT)ﬁE\H‘FI;E\'Eﬁ

AT EAFE165 (BRI EBER
H ERRETNRBERBTERES
S ERFIETYE BEL&RE
ZEE " EF%IEEFE”\*E#)%¥‘V}%
i BRI-EREBEBEOBAREER

HKAS 16 will have no material impact on the consolidated EXRE BT ERFE165 (185] )
financial statements. B AEHEEMBRESENERY
@ o

The amendments to HKAS 32 clarify that income tax on
distributions to holders of an equity instrument and transaction
costs of an equity transaction should be accounted for in
accordance with HKAS 12 Income Taxes. The directors

BB ERIEI25E (1£5]) BB DK
THRETARAEANFS %R&%E?&
HLZRXGRAEIRBEREGTERE
12T SR AR - EETAH EE)E’\$‘E”E

anticipate that the amendments to HKAS 32 will have no effect BB RNZ RIS BS 2R 4ERIZE32
on the Group’s consolidated financial statements as the Group (B BT e AEB 256 0%
has already adopted this treatment. WTEKTE -
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
For the year ended 31 March 2013

2. Application of New And Revised
Hong Kong Financial Reporting
Standards (“HKFRSs”) (continued)

New and revised HKFRSs issued but not yet effective
(Continued)

HKFRS 9 Financial Instruments

HKFRS 9 issued in 2009 introduces new requirements for
the classification and measurement of financial assets.
HKFRS 9 amended in 2010 includes the requirements for the
classification and measurement of financial liabilities and for
derecognition.

Key requirements of HKFRS 9 are described as follows:

All recognised financial assets that are within the scope of
HKAS 39 Financial Instruments: Recognition and Measurement
are subsequently measured at amortised cost or fair value.
Specifically, debt investments that are held within a business
model whose objective is to collect the contractual cash
flows, and that have contractual cash flows that are solely
payments of principal and interest on the principal outstanding
are generally measured at amortised cost at the end of
subsequent accounting periods. All other debt investments
and equity investments are measured at their fair values at
the end of subsequent reporting periods. In addition, under
HKFRS 9, entities may make an irrevocable election to present
subsequent changes in the fair value of an equity investment
(that is not held for trading) in other comprehensive income,
with only dividend income generally recognised in profit or
loss.

me B wEEMEE

BE_T—=F=-A=1+—HLHEE

R RAEERT B R
ﬁ“?&%i%,ﬁu (T BB 35 3R

N
(#)

EEMERERERZHFTREBITE
BMBHRELER (F)

BB BHREERFEIR [£@MT A
R-ZFZNFROZERMBHREE
ARSI ABREREED BME
ZHBRE -R_T—FFEFT 2B LM
BHREENFORBEHEMBEL A
Mt EANRBUBMER Z R E

ERMBREERESRNEERTF
aanT

BB EFTERIFEIN: 2/ T A 7
HEE/BRAZFECHERAESHE
EEEYBARBHEHKASRDFE
2 FRlR BEHEWEETINEERZE
BEX  URARASSNAESE R
REBRSZMEMBER ZFIHNRE
mZERRE  —RRER ST EBA
REZEHEKNATFE-MEAMER
RERBRAIEEREEREAEE
REFRAFEFE o BRIBEH B
TS 2R F 057 - BRI EH A AT
EEEENEMEEKZEF 27 /RA
KE (WIHFHER ) 2 HERATEE
B W—RENBRANBRREKA -
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
For the year ended 31 March 2013

Application of New And Revised
Hong Kong Financial Reporting
Standards (“HKFRSs”) (continued)

New and revised HKFRSs issued but not yet effective
(Continued)
HKFRS 9 Financial Instruments (Continued)

With regard to the measurement of financial liabilities
designated as at FVTPL, HKFRS 9 requires that the amount
of change in the fair value of the financial liability that is
attributable to changes in the credit risk of that liability
is presented in other comprehensive income, unless the
recognition of the effects of changes in the liability’s credit risk
in other comprehensive income would create or enlarge an
accounting mismatch in profit or loss. Changes in fair value
of financial liabilities attributable to changes in the financial
liabilities’ credit risk are not subsequently reclassified to profit
or loss. Under HKAS 39, the entire amount of the change in
the fair value of the financial liability designated as FVTPL was
presented in profit or loss.

The directors anticipate that HKFRS 9 will be adopted in
the Group’s consolidated financial statements for the annual
period beginning on 1 April 2015. Based on the analysis of the
Group’s financial assets and financial liabilities as at 31 March
2013, the adoption of HKFRS 9 will affect the classification and
measurement of the Group’s available-for-sale investments
and is not likely to have significant impact on the amounts
of the Group’s other financial assets and financial liabilities.
Regarding the Group’s available-for-sale investments, it is not
practicable to provide a reasonable estimate of that effect until
a detailed review has been completed.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
For the year ended 31 March 2013

2. Application of New And Revised
Hong Kong Financial Reporting
Standards (“HKFRSs”) (continued)

New and revised HKFRSs issued but not yet effective
(Continued)

New and revised standards on consolidation, joint
arrangements, associates and disclosures

In June 2011, a package of five standards on consolidation,
joint arrangements, associates and disclosures was issued,
including HKFRS 10, HKFRS 11, HKFRS 12, HKAS 27 (as
revised in 2011) and HKAS 28 (as revised in 2011).

Key requirements of standards relevant to the Group are
described below.

HKFRS 10 replaces the parts of HKAS 27 Consolidated and
Separate Financial Statements that deal with consolidated
financial statements. HK(SIC) — Int 12 Consolidation — Special
Purpose Entities will be withdrawn upon effective date of
HKFRS 10. Under HKFRS 10, there is only one basis for
consolidation, that is, control. In addition, HKFRS 10 includes
a new definition of control that contains three elements: (a)
power over an investee, (b) exposure, or rights, to variable
returns from its involvement with the investee, and (c) the
ability to use its power over the investee to affect the amount
of the investor’s returns. Extensive guidance has been added
in HKFRS 10 to deal with complex scenarios.

HKFRS 12 is a disclosure standard and is applicable to
entities that have interests in subsidiaries, joint arrangements,
associates and/or unconsolidated structured entities. In
general, the disclosure requirements in HKFRS 12 are more
extensive than those in the current standards.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
For the year ended 31 March 2013

Application of New And Revised
Hong Kong Financial Reporting
Standards (“HKFRSs”) (continued)

New and revised HKFRSs issued but not yet effective
(Continued)

New and revised standards on consolidation, joint
arrangements, associates and disclosures (Continued)

In July 2012, the amendments to HKFRS 10, HKFRS 11 and
HKFRS 12 were issued to clarify certain transitional guidance
on the application of these five HKFRSs for the first time.

These five standards, together with the amendments relating
to the transitional guidance, will be adopted in the Group’s
consolidated financial statements for the annual period
beginning on 1 April 2013. The application of these five
standards is not likely to have significant impact on amounts
reported in the consolidated financial statements.

HKFRS 13 Fair Value Measurement

HKFRS 13 establishes a single source of guidance for
fair value measurements and disclosures about fair value
measurements. The standard defines fair value, establishes a
framework for measuring fair value, and requires disclosures
about fair value measurements. The scope of HKFRS 13 is
broad; it applies to both financial instrument items and non-
financial instrument items for which other HKFRSs require or
permit fair value measurements and disclosures about fair
value measurements, except in specified circumstances. In
general, the disclosure requirements in HKFRS 13 are more
extensive than those in the current standards. For example,
quantitative and qualitative disclosures based on the three-
level fair value hierarchy currently required for financial
instruments only under HKFRS 7 Financial Instruments:
Disclosures will be extended by HKFRS 13 to cover all assets
and liabilities within its scope.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
For the year ended 31 March 2013

2. Application of New And Revised
Hong Kong Financial Reporting
Standards (“HKFRSs”) (continued)

New and revised HKFRSs issued but not yet effective
(Continued)
HKFRS 13 Fair Value Measurement (Continued)

HKFRS 13 will be adopted in the Group’s consolidated
financial statements for the annual period beginning on 1
April 2013 and that the application of the new Standard is not
likely to have material impact to the amounts reported in the
consolidated financial statements but result in more extensive
disclosures in the consolidated financial statements.

Amendments to HKAS 1 Presentation of Items of Other
Comprehensive Income

The amendments to HKAS 1 Presentation of Items of
Other Comprehensive Income introduce new terminology
for the statement of comprehensive income and income
statement. Under the amendments to HKAS 1, a ‘statement
of comprehensive income’ is renamed as a ‘statement of profit
or loss and other comprehensive income’ and an ‘income
statement’ is renamed as a ‘statement of profit or loss’. The
amendments to HKAS 1 retain the option to present profit
or loss and other comprehensive income in either a single
statement or in two separate but consecutive statements.
However, the amendments to HKAS 1 require items of other
comprehensive income to be grouped into two categories: (a)
items that will not be reclassified subsequently to profit or loss;
and (b) items that may be reclassified subsequently to profit or
loss when specific conditions are met. Income tax on items of
other comprehensive income is required to be allocated on the
same basis — the amendments do not change the option to
present items of other comprehensive income either before tax
or net of tax.
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Application of New And Revised
Hong Kong Financial Reporting
Standards (“HKFRSs”) (continued)

New and revised HKFRSs issued but not yet effective
(Continued)

Amendments to HKAS 1 Presentation of l[tems of Other
Comprehensive Income (Continued)

The amendments to HKAS 1 are effective for the Group’s
annual period beginning on 1 April 2013. The presentation
of items of other comprehensive income will be modified
accordingly when the amendments are applied in future
accounting periods.

The directors anticipate that the application of the other new
and revised HKFRSs will have no material impact on the
consolidated financial statements.

Significant Accounting Policies

The consolidated financial statements have been prepared in
accordance with HKFRSs issued by the HKICPA. In addition,
the consolidated financial statements include applicable
disclosures required by the Rules Governing the Listing of
Securities on the Stock Exchange and by the Hong Kong
Companies Ordinance.

The consolidated financial statements have been prepared on
the historical cost basis except for investment properties and
certain financial instruments that are measured at fair values,
as explained in the accounting policies set out below. Historical
cost is generally based on the fair value of the consideration
given in exchange for goods.

The principal accounting policies are set out below.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
For the year ended 31 March 2013

3. Significant Accounting Policies
(Continued)

Basis of consolidation

The consolidated financial statements incorporate the financial
statements of the Company and entities controlled by the
Company (its subsidiaries). Control is achieved where the
Company has the power to govern the financial and operating
policies of an entity so as to obtain benefits from its activities.

Income and expenses of subsidiaries acquired or disposed of
during the year are included in the consolidated statement of
comprehensive income from the effective date of acquisition
and up to the effective date of disposal, as appropriate.

Where necessary, adjustments are made to the financial
statements of subsidiaries to bring their accounting policies
into line with those used by other members of the Group.

All intra-group transactions, balances, income and expenses
are eliminated in full on consolidation.

Revenue recognition
Revenue is measured at the fair value of the consideration
received or receivable and represents amounts receivable for
goods sold in the normal course of business, net of discounts
and sales related taxes.

Revenue from sales of goods is recognised when the goods
are delivered and titles have passed.

Interest income from a financial asset is recognised when it
is probable that the economic benefits will flow to the Group
and the amount of income can be measured reliably. Interest
income from a financial asset is accrued on a time basis, by
reference to the principal outstanding and at the effective
interest rate applicable, which is the rate that exactly discounts
the estimated future cash receipts through the expected life of
the financial asset to that asset’s net carrying amount on initial
recognition.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
For the year ended 31 March 2013

Significant Accounting Policies
(Continued)

Investment properties

Investment properties are properties held to earn rentals and/
or for capital appreciation. Investment properties include land
held for undetermined future use, which is regarded as held for
capital appreciation purpose.

Investment properties are initially measured at cost, including
any directly attributable expenditure, or at deemed cost
representing fair value at the date of transfer from property,
plant and equipment and prepaid lease payment upon change
in usage as evidence by end of owner-occupation. Subsequent
to initial recognition, investment properties are measured at
their fair values. Gains or losses arising from changes in the fair
value of investment properties are included in profit or loss for
the period in which they arise.

An investment property is derecognised upon disposal or
when the investment property is permanently withdrawn
from use or no future economic benefits are expected from
its disposals. Any gain or loss arising on derecognition of
the property (calculated as the difference between the net
disposal proceeds and the carrying amount of the asset) is
included in profit or loss in the period in which the property is
derecognised.

Property, plant and equipment

Property, plant and equipment including leasehold land
(classified as finance leases), other than construction in
progress, are stated in the consolidated statement of financial
position at cost less subsequent accumulated depreciation
and accumulated impairment losses, if any.

Depreciation is recognised so as to write off the cost of items
of property, plant and equipment, other than construction in
progress, less their residual values over their estimated useful
lives, using the straight-line method. The estimated useful lives,
residual values and depreciation method are reviewed at the
end of the reporting period, with the effect of any changes in
estimate accounted for on a prospective basis.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
For the year ended 31 March 2013

3. Significant Accounting Policies
(Continued)

Property, plant and equipment (Continued)

Construction in progress includes property, plant and
equipment in the course of construction for production or for
its own use purposes. Construction in progress is carried at
cost less any recognised impairment loss. Construction in
progress is classified to the appropriate category of property,
plant and equipment when completed and ready for intended
use. Depreciation of these assets, on the same basis as other
property assets, commences when the assets are ready for
their intended use.

An item of property, plant and equipment is derecognised upon
disposal or when no future economic benefits are expected
to arise from the continued use of the asset. Any gain or loss
arising on the disposal or retirement of an item of property,
plant and equipment is determined as the difference between
the sales proceeds and the carrying amount of the asset and is
recognised in profit or loss.

Intangible assets

Intangible assets with indefinite useful lives that are
acquired separately are carried at cost less any subsequent
accumulated impairment losses (see the accounting policy in
respect of impairment losses on tangible and intangible assets
below).

An intangible asset is derecognised on disposal, or when no
future economic benefits are expected from use or disposal.
Gains or losses arising from derecognition of an intangible
asset are measured at the difference between the net disposal
proceeds and the carrying amount of the asset and are
recognised in profit or loss in the period when the asset is
derecognised.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
For the year ended 31 March 2013

Significant Accounting Policies
(Continued)

Impairment losses on tangible and intangible assets

At the end of the reporting period, the Group reviews the
carrying amounts of its tangible and intangible assets with
finite useful lives to determine whether there is any indication
that those assets have suffered an impairment loss. If any
such indication exists, the recoverable amount of the asset is
estimated in order to determine the extent of the impairment
loss, if any. When it is not possible to estimate the recoverable
amount of an individual asset, the Group estimates the
recoverable amount of the cash-generating unit to which the
asset belongs. When a reasonable and consistent basis of
allocation can be identified, corporate assets are also allocated
to individual cash-generating units, or otherwise they are
allocated to the smallest group of cash-generating units for
which a reasonable and consistent allocation basis can be
identified.

Intangible assets with indefinite useful lives are tested for
impairment at least annually, and whenever there is an
indication that they may be impaired.

Recoverable amount is the higher of fair value less costs to
sell and value in use. In assessing value in use, the estimated
future cash flows are discounted to their present value using a
pre-tax discount rate that reflects current market assessments
of the time value of money and the risks specific to the asset
for which the estimates of future cash flows have not been
adjusted.

If the recoverable amount of an asset (or a cash-generating
unit) is estimated to be less than its carrying amount, the
carrying amount of the asset (or a cash-generating unit) is
reduced to its recoverable amount. An impairment loss is
recognised immediately in profit or loss, unless the relevant
asset is carried at a revalued amount under another standard,
in which case the impairment loss is treated as a revaluation
decrease under that standard.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
For the year ended 31 March 2013

3. Significant Accounting Policies
(Continued)

Impairment losses on tangible and intangible assets
(Continued)

Where an impairment loss subsequently reverses, the carrying
amount of the asset (or cash-generating unit) is increased to
the revised estimate of its recoverable amount, but so that
the increased carrying amount does not exceed the carrying
amount that would have been determined had no impairment
loss been recognised for the asset (or a cash-generating unit)
in prior years. A reversal of an impairment loss is recognised
as income immediately, unless the relevant asset is carried
at a revalued amount under another standard, in which case
the reversal of the impairment loss is treated as a revaluation
increase under the standard.

Financial instruments

Financial assets and financial liabilities are recognised in the
consolidated statement of financial position when a group
entity becomes a party to the contractual provisions of the
instrument.

Financial assets and financial liabilities are initially measured
at fair value. Transaction costs that are directly attributable
to the acquisition or issue of financial assets and financial
liabilities (other than financial assets and financial liabilities at
fair value through profit or loss) are added to or deducted from
the fair value of the financial assets or financial liabilities, as
appropriate, on initial recognition. Transaction costs directly
attributable to the acquisition of financial assets or financial
liabilities at fair value through profit or loss are recognised
immediately in profit or loss.

Financial assets

The Group’s financial assets are classified into one of the
three categories, including financial assets at FVTPL, loans
and receivables and available-for-sale financial assets.
The classification depends on the nature and purpose of
the financial assets and is determined at the time of initial
recognition. All regular way purchases or sales of financial
assets are recognised and derecognised on a trade date
basis. Regular way purchases or sales are purchases or
sales of financial assets that require delivery of assets within
the time frame established by regulation or convention in the
marketplace.
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Significant Accounting Policies
(Continued)

Financial instruments (Continued)

Financial assets (Continueqd)

Effective interest method

The effective interest method is a method of calculating the
amortised cost of a debt instrument and of allocating interest
income over the relevant period. The effective interest rate is
the rate that exactly discounts estimated future cash receipts
(including all fees paid or received that form an integral part
of the effective interest rate, transaction costs and other
premiums or discounts) through the expected life of the debt
instrument, or, where appropriate, a shorter period, to the net
carrying amount on initial recognition.

Interest income is recognised on an effective interest basis for
debt instruments other than those financial assets classified as
at FVTPL, of which interest income is excluded in net gains or
losses.

Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss
A financial asset may be designated as at FVTPL upon initial
recognition if:

o such designation eliminates or significantly reduces a
measurement or recognition inconsistency that would
otherwise arise; or

o the financial asset forms part of a group of financial
assets or financial liabilities or both, which is managed
and its performance is evaluated on a fair value basis,
in accordance with the Group’s documented risk
management or investment strategy, and information
about the grouping is provided internally on that basis; or

° it forms part of a contract containing one or more
embedded derivatives, and HKAS 39 permits the entire
combined contract (asset or liability) to be designated as
at FVTPL.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
For the year ended 31 March 2013

Significant Accounting Policies
(Continued)

Financial instruments (Continued)

Financial assets (Continued)

Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss
(Continued)

Financial assets at FVTPL are measured at fair value, with
changes in fair value arising from remeasurement recognised
directly in profit or loss in the period in which they arise.
The net gain or loss recognised in profit or loss excludes
any dividend or interest earned on the financial assets and
is included in the other gains and losses line item in the
consolidated statement of comprehensive income. Fair value is
determined in the manner described in note 6.

Loans and receivables

Loans and receivables are non-derivative financial assets
with fixed or determinable payments that are not quoted in
an active market. Subsequent to initial recognition, loans and
receivables (including trade receivables and bills receivable,
other receivables, time deposits and deposits placed with
banks and financial institutions and bank balances and cash)
are measured at amortised cost using the effective interest
method, less any identified impairment losses (see accounting
policy on impairment loss on financial assets below).

Available-for-sale financial assets

Available-for-sale financial assets are non-derivatives that are
either designated or not classified as financial assets at FVTPL,
or loans and receivables. Debt securities held by the Group
that are classified as available-for-sale and are measured at
fair value at the end of each reporting period. Changes in
the carrying amount of available-for-sale monetary financial
assets relating to interest income calculated using the effective
interest method and dividends on available-for-sale equity
investments are recognised in profit or loss. Other changes in
the carrying amount of available-for-sale financial assets are
recognised in other comprehensive income and accumulated
under the heading of investment revaluation reserve. When
the investment is disposed of or is determined to be impaired,
the cumulative gain or loss previously accumulated in the
investments revaluation reserve is reclassified to profit or loss
(see the accounting policy in respect of impairment loss on
financial assets below).
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
For the year ended 31 March 2013

Significant Accounting Policies
(Continued)

Financial instruments (Continued)

Financial assets (Continueqd)

Impairment of financial assets

Financial assets, other than those at FVTPL, are assessed for
indicators of impairment at the end of each reporting period.
Financial assets are considered to be impaired when there is
objective evidence that, as a result of one or more events that
occurred after the initial recognition of the financial asset, the
estimated future cash flows of the financial assets have been
affected.

For an available-for sale equity investment, a significant or
prolonged decline in the fair value of that investment below its
cost is considered to be objective evidence of impairment.

For all other financial assets, objective evidence of impairment
could include:

o significant financial difficulty of the issuer or counterparty;
or

° breach of contract, such as default or delinquency in
interest and principal payments; or

° it becoming probable that the borrower will enter
bankruptcy or financial re-organisation; or

° disappearance of an active market for that financial asset
because of financial difficulties.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
For the year ended 31 March 2013

3. Significant Accounting Policies
(Continued)

Financial instruments (Continued)

Financial assets (Continueqd)

Impairment of financial assets (Continued)

For certain categories of financial asset, such as trade
receivables and bills receivable, assets that are assessed
not to be impaired individually are, in addition, assessed
for impairment on a collective basis. Objective evidence of
impairment for a portfolio of receivables could include the
Group’s past experience of collecting payments, an increase in
the number of delayed payments in the portfolio past the credit
period of 90 days, observable changes in national or local
economic conditions that correlate with default on receivables.

For financial assets carried at amortised cost, the amount of
the impairment loss recognised is the difference between the
asset’s carrying amount and the present value of the estimated
future cash flows discounted at the financial asset’'s original
effective interest rate.

For financial assets carried at cost, the amount of the
impairment loss is measured as the difference between the
asset’s carrying amount and the present value of the estimated
future cash flows discounted at the current market rate of
return for a similar financial asset. Such impairment loss will
not be reversed in subsequent periods.

The carrying amount of the financial asset is reduced by
the impairment loss directly for all financial assets with the
exception of trade receivables and bills receivable, where the
carrying amount is reduced through the use of an allowance
account. Changes in the carrying amount of the allowance
account are recognised in profit or loss. When a trade
receivable and a bill receivable is considered uncollectible,
it is written off against the allowance account. Subsequent
recoveries of amounts previously written off are credited to
profit or loss.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
For the year ended 31 March 2013

Significant Accounting Policies
(Continued)

Financial instruments (Continued)

Financial assets (Continueqd)

Impairment of financial assets (Continued)

When an available-for-sale financial asset is considered to be
impaired, cumulative gains or losses previously recognised in
other comprehensive income are reclassified to profit or loss in
the period in which the impairment takes place.

For financial assets measured at amortised cost, if, in a
subsequent period, the amount of impairment loss decreases
and the decrease can be related objectively to an event
occurring after the impairment losses was recognised, the
previously recognised impairment loss is reversed through
profit or loss to the extent that the carrying amount of the
asset at the date the impairment is reversed does not exceed
what the amortised cost would have been had the impairment
not been recognised.

Impairment losses on available-for-sale equity investments will
not be reversed through profit or loss. Any increase in fair value
subsequent to an impairment loss is recognised directly in
other comprehensive income and accumulated in investment
revaluation reserve. For available-for-sale debt investments,
impairment losses are subsequently reversed through profit or
loss if an increase in the fair value of the investment can be
objectively related to an event occurring after the recognition of
the impairment loss.

Financial liabilities and equity instruments

Debt and equity instruments issued by a group entity are
classified as either financial liabilities or as equity in accordance
with the substance of the contractual arrangements and the
definitions of a financial liability and an equity instrument.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
For the year ended 31 March 2013

3. Significant Accounting Policies
(Continued)

Financial instruments (Continued)

Financial liabilities and equity instruments (Continued)
Effective interest method

The effective interest method is a method of calculating the
amortised cost of a financial liability and of allocating interest
expense over the relevant period. The effective interest rate is
the rate that exactly discounts estimated future cash payments
(including all fees paid or received that form an integral part of
the effective interest rate, translation costs and other premiums
or discounts) through the expected life of the financial liability,
or, where appropriate, a shorter period, to the net carrying
amount on initial recognition.

Interest expense is recognised on an effective interest basis.

Financial liabilities

Financial liabilities (including trade payables and bills payable,
other payables and secured bank loans) are subsequently
measured at amortised cost, using the effective interest
method.

Equity instruments

An equity instrument is any contract that evidences a residual
interest in the assets of the Group after deducting all of its
liabilities. Equity instruments issued by the Company are
recognised at the proceeds received, net of direct issue costs.
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Significant Accounting Policies
(Continued)

Financial instruments (Continued)

Derecognition

The Group derecognises a financial asset only when the
contractual rights to the cash flows from the assets expire.

On derecognition of a financial asset, the difference between
the asset’s carrying amount and the sum of the consideration
received and receivable and the cumulative gain or loss that
had been recognised in other comprehensive income and
accumulated in equity is recognised in profit or loss.

The Group derecognises financial liabilities when, and only
when, the Group’s obligations are discharged, cancelled or
expire. The difference between the carrying amount of the
financial liability derecognised and the consideration paid and
payable is recognised in profit or loss.

Inventories

Inventories are stated at the lower of cost and net realisable
value. Costs of inventories are calculated using the first-
in, first-out method. Net realisable value represents the
estimated selling price for inventories less all estimated costs
of completion and costs necessary to make the sale.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
For the year ended 31 March 2013

Significant Accounting Policies
(Continued)

Taxation
Income tax expense represents the sum of the tax currently
payable and deferred tax.

The tax currently payable is based on taxable profit for the
year. Taxable profit differs from ‘profit before tax’ as reported in
the consolidated statement of comprehensive income because
it excludes items of income or expense that are taxable or
deductible in other years and it further excludes items that are
never taxable or deductible. The Group’s liability for current
tax is calculated using tax rates that have been enacted or
substantively enacted by the end of the reporting period.

Deferred tax is recognised on temporary differences
between the carrying amounts of assets and liabilities in the
consolidated financial statements and the corresponding tax
base used in the computation of taxable profit. Deferred tax
liabilities are generally recognised for all taxable temporary
differences. Deferred tax assets are generally recognised for all
deductible temporary difference to the extent that it is probable
that taxable profits will be available against which those
deductible temporary differences can be utilised. Such assets
and liabilities are not recognised if the temporary difference
arises from the initial recognition (other than in a business
combination) of other assets and liabilities in a transaction that
affects neither the taxable profit nor the accounting profit.

Deferred tax liabilities are recognised for taxable temporary
differences associated with investments in subsidiaries
except where the Group is able to control the reversal of the
temporary difference and it is probable that the temporary
difference will not reverse in the foreseeable future. Deferred
tax assets arising from deductible temporary differences
associated with such investments are only recognised to the
extent that it is probable that there will be sufficient taxable
profits against which to utilise the benefits of the temporary
differences and they are expected to reverse in the foreseeable
future.

e BwEEMEE

HE—_ZT—=F=A=t+—HIFE

FESTTEE @

Bi1R
FIT 1S T B S48 R 4F 2 B 9 8 TR S R AT
BiIE o

AHRMNTBIRE R METH
FERTUG AN AR S 2 HNER AR
BREBLADE A TR - TR E N BRE
H o 6 2 8 SR AT HR 2 WA X
HIER M BRKERAKTRBL
R ZEE - AEBNAHHAE EIA
RBEAE —HRAIABRANHR R

-

EERIBASRAA M B REMINEE
kBB REERTEERV DN A
FRTRETR EM A < B Z 5 - IRIETR
FREABRELMERRVEREZR
TARER - B IAE EBFIZAI8E

3R B E RO 2 R AR A
R BLAT B Al AL EE B 2 BB T DABERE o i
R—BXR 5T BEHAHFAINREFH
REREMEENRBEMSI B TR
ERMTTERRTLERN M TATEE
shaEd T emRRFEENRE-

BEERREEERMNEARREESE
Z BRI AR T I = R AR RER - M
AEEENEHROERERERAH
EREZERRATETENAI R K KRR
AIRRAN - ERZF AR 2 I FRE
EREMEEZELEHEAEEER AR
BERABRRBGENAIAERERER
Z Mz BFAET R A] R A% 2R AT DA B 3
FERR °



Annual Report 2012/2013 —ZE—Z—FZ_-_F—=FF#f

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
For the year ended 31 March 2013

Significant Accounting Policies
(Continued)

Taxation (Continued)

The carrying amount of deferred tax assets is reviewed at the
end of each reporting period and reduced to the extent that
it is no longer probable that sufficient taxable profits will be
available to allow all or part of the asset to be recovered.

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are measured at the tax rates
that are expected to apply in the period in which the liability is
settled or the asset is realised, based on tax rate (and tax laws)
that have been enacted or substantively enacted by the end of
the reporting period.

The measurement of deferred tax liabilities and assets reflects
the tax consequences that would follow from the manner in
which the Group expects, at the end of the reporting period,
to recover or settle the carrying amount of its assets and
liabilities.

For the purposes of measuring deferred tax liabilities or
deferred tax assets for investment properties that are
measured using the fair value model, the carrying amounts of
such properties are presumed to be recovered entirely through
sale, unless the presumption is rebutted. The presumption is
rebutted when the investment property is depreciable and is
held within a business model whose objective is to consume
substantially all of the economic benefits embodied in the
investment property over time, rather than through sale.

Current and deferred tax are recognised in profit or loss,
except when they relate to items that are recognised in other
comprehensive income or directly in equity, in which case,
the current and deferred tax are also recognised in other
comprehensive income or directly in equity respectively.

Leasing

Leases are classified as finance leases whenever the terms
of the lease transfer substantially all the risks and rewards
of ownership to the lessee. All other leases are classified as
operating leases.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
For the year ended 31 March 2013

3. Significant Accounting Policies
(Continued)

Leasing (Continued)

The Group as lessor

Rental income from operating leases is recognised in profit or
loss on a straight-line basis over the term of the relevant lease.

The Group as lessee
Operating lease payments are recognised as an expense on a
straight-line basis over the lease term.

Leasehold land and building

When a lease includes both land and building elements, the
Group assesses the classification of each element as a finance
or an operating lease separately based on the assessment as
to whether substantially all the risks and rewards incidental
to ownership of each element have been transferred to the
Group, unless it is clear that both elements are operating
leases in which case the entire lease is classified as an
operating lease. Specifically, the minimum lease payments
(including any lump-sum upfront payments) are allocated
between the land and the building elements in proportion to
the relative fair values of the leasehold interests in the land
element and building element of the lease at the inception of
the lease.

To the extent the allocation of the lease payments can be
made reliably, interest in leasehold land that is accounted
for as an operating lease is presented as “prepaid lease
payments” in the consolidated statement of financial position
and is amortised over the lease term on a straight-line basis
except for those that are classified and accounted for as
investment properties under the fair value model.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
For the year ended 31 March 2013

3. Significant Accounting Policies 3. FEFFTEX @

(Continued)

Leasing (Continued)

Leasehold land and building (Continued)

If an item of prepaid lease payments becomes an investment
property because its use has changed as evidenced by end
of owner-occupation, any difference between the carrying
amount and the fair value of that item at the date of transfer is
recognised in other comprehensive income and accumulated
in property revaluation reserve. On the subsequent sale or
retirement of the asset, the relevant revaluation reserve will be
transferred directly to retained profits.

Foreign currencies

In preparing the financial statements of each individual group
entity, transactions in currencies other than the functional
currency of that entity (foreign currencies) are recorded in the
respective functional currency (i.e. the currency of the primary
economic environment in which the entity operates) at the
rates of exchanges prevailing on the dates of the transactions.
At the end of the reporting period, monetary items
denominated in foreign currencies are retranslated at the rates
prevailing at that date. Non-monetary items carried at fair value
that are denominated in foreign currencies are retranslated
at the rates prevailing on the date when the fair value was
determined. Non-monetary items that are measured in terms
of historical cost in a foreign currency are not retranslated.

Exchange differences arising on the settlement of monetary
items, and on the retranslation of monetary items, are
recognised in profit or loss in the period in which they
arise. Exchange differences arising on the retranslation of
non-monetary items carried at fair value are included in profit
or loss for the period.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
For the year ended 31 March 2013

Significant Accounting Policies
(Continued)

Foreign currencies (Continued)

For the purposes of presenting the consolidated financial
statements, the assets and liabilities of the Group’s foreign
operations are translated into the presentation currency of the
Group (i.e. Hong Kong dollars) using exchange rates prevailing
at the end of each reporting period. Income and expenses
items are translated at the average exchange rates for the year.
Exchange differences arising, if any, are recognised in other
comprehensive income and accumulated in equity under the
heading of translation reserve.

Borrowing costs

Borrowing costs directly attributable to the acquisition,
construction or production of qualifying assets, which are
assets that necessarily take a substantial period of time to get
ready for their intended use or sale, are added to the cost of
those assets until such time as the assets are substantially
ready for their intended use or sale. Investment income earned
on the temporary investment of specific borrowings pending
their expenditure on qualifying assets is deducted from the
borrowing costs eligible for capitalisation.

All other borrowing costs are recognised in profit or loss in the
period in which they are incurred.

Retirement benefit costs

Payments to defined contribution retirement benefit plans are
recognised as an expense when employees have rendered
service entitling them to the contributions.
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Critical Accounting Judgements
and Key Sources of Estimation
Uncertainty

In the application of the Group’s accounting policies, which are
described in note 3, the directors of the Company are required
to make judgements, estimates and assumptions about the
carrying amounts of assets and liabilities that are not readily
apparent from other sources. The estimates and associated
assumptions are based on historical experience and other
factors that are considered to be relevant. Actual results may
differ from these estimates.

The estimates and underlying assumptions are reviewed on
an on-going basis. Revisions to accounting estimates are
recognised in the period in which the estimate is revised if the
revision affects only that period, or in the period of the revision
and future periods if the revision affects both current and future
periods.

Critical judgement in applying accounting policies

The following is the critical judgement, apart from those
involving estimations (see below), that the directors have made
in the process of applying the Group’s accounting policies
and that have the most significant effect on the amounts
recognised in the consolidated financial statements.
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4. Critical Accounting Judgements
and Key Sources of Estimation
Uncertainty (continueq)

Critical judgement in applying accounting policies
(Continued)

Deferred taxation on investment properties

For the purposes of measuring deferred tax liabilities or
deferred tax assets arising from investment properties that
are measured using the fair value model, the directors have
reviewed the Group’s investment property portfolios and
concluded that the Group’s investment properties are not
held under a business model whose objective is to consume
substantially all of the economic benefits embodied in the
investment properties over time, rather than through sale.
Therefore, in measuring the Group’s deferred taxation on
investment properties, the directors have determined that
the presumption that the carrying amounts of investment
properties measured using the fair value model are recovered
entirely through sale is not rebutted. As a result, the Group has
not recognised any deferred taxes on changes in fair value of
investment property in Hong Kong as the Group is not subject
to any income taxes on disposal of its investment properties.
The Group recognised the deferred tax on changes in fair value
of the investment property in PRC taking into account the land
appreciation tax and enterprise income tax payable upon sale
of the investment property.

Key sources of estimation uncertainty

The following are the key assumptions concerning the future,
and other key sources of estimation uncertainty at the end
of the reporting period, that have a significant risk of causing
a material adjustment to the carrying amounts of assets and
liabilities within the next financial year.
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Critical Accounting Judgements
and Key Sources of Estimation
Uncertainty (continueq)

Key sources of estimation uncertainty (Continued)
Investment properties

As described in note 15, investment properties are stated at
fair value based on the valuation performed by independent
professional valuers. In determining the fair value, the valuers
have used a method of valuation which involves certain
estimates. In relying on the valuation report, the management
has exercised their judgement and are satisfied that the
method of valuation is reflective of the current market
conditions. If there are changes in the assumptions used
for the valuation, the fair value of the investment properties
will change in future. As at 31 March 2013, the carrying
amount of investment properties was HK$242,100,000 (2012:
HK$210,989,000). Details are set out in note 15.

Depreciation

The carry value of the Group’s property, plant and equipment
as at 31 March 2013 was HK$397,277,000 (2012:
HK$406,419,000). The Group depreciates the property, plant
and equipment on a straight-line basis over their estimated
useful lives of 3 to 25 years, or over the lease terms, after
taking into account their estimated residual value, commencing
from the date the property, plant and equipment is available
for use. The estimated useful lives and dates that the Group
places the property, plant and equipment into productive use
reflects the directors’ estimate of the periods that the Group
intends to derive future economic benefits from the use of the
Group’s property, plant and equipment. If the estimated useful
life of property, plant and equipment did not reflect its actual
useful life, additional depreciation may be required.
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Capital Risk Management

The Group manages its capital to ensure that entities in the
Group will be able to continue as a going concern while
maximising the return to shareholders through the optimisation
of the debt and equity balance. The Group’s overall strategy
remains unchanged from prior years.

The capital structure of the Group consists of net debt, which
includes bank loans, net of cash and cash equivalents and
equity attributable to owners of the Company, comprising
issued share capital, reserves and retained profits.

The directors of the Company review the capital structure on
a quarterly basis. As part of this review, the directors consider
the cost of capital and the risks associated with each class
of capital. Based on recommendations of the directors, the
Group will balance its overall capital structure through the
payment of dividends and new share issues as well as the
issue of new debt or the redemption of existing debt.

Financial Instruments

6a. Categories of financial instruments

Financial assets B EE
Loans and receivables (including B3R AR
cash and cash equivalents) (BERSEBESEE)
Available-for-sale investments AHHERE
Financial assets designated at FVTPL ~ #BEZE AT EAE
B A E
Financial liabilities S =R

Financial liabilities at amortised cost

BURASEET 32N
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6a. &@ T AR

2013 2012
—EB—-=5F —E—_F
HK$’000 HK$'000
FET FET
935,637 967,701
15,563 8,561
5,342 8,078
480,771 564,232
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6. Financial Instruments (continueq)

6b.

Financial risk management objectives and policies

The Group’s major financial instruments include
available-for-sale investments, financial assets
designated at FVTPL, trade receivables and bills
receivable, other receivables, time deposits and deposits
placed with banks and financial institutions, bank
balances and cash, trade payables and bills payable,
other payables and bank borrowings. Details of these
financial instruments are disclosed in respective notes.
The risks associated with these financial instruments
include market risk (currency risk, interest rate risk and
other price risk), credit risk and liquidity risk. The policies
on how to mitigate these risks are set out below. The
management manages and monitors these exposures
to ensure appropriate measures are implemented on a
timely and effective manner.

Market risk

Currency risk

Several subsidiaries of the Company have foreign
currency sales and purchases, which exposes the Group
to foreign currency risk. Over 97% (2012: 95%) of the
Group’s sales are denominated in currencies other than
the functional currency of the group entity making the
sale.

The Group currently does not implement hedging activity
to hedge against foreign currency exposure. However,
the management closely monitors foreign currency
exposure and will consider hedging significant foreign
currency exposure should the need arise.
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6. Financial Instruments (continveq)

6b.

Financial risk management objectives and policies
(Continued)

Market risk (Continued)

Currency risk (Continued)

The carrying amounts of the Group’s foreign currency
denominated monetary assets and monetary liabilities at
the end of the reporting period are as follows:
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RBER NEBEAIINEFEZ
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T

Liabilities Assets
=R BE

2013 2012 2013 2012
—EBE-=F —E—-F —EBE-=F —E——F
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
FET FHET FET FHET
United States dollar (‘USD”)  3£7T 25,255 25,476 630,647 716,910
Euro (‘EUR’) B 7& 1,219 715 1,664 563
Renminbi (‘RMB”) AR - - 61,980 66,275

Assets and liabilities denominated in USD, EUR and RMB
mainly represents time deposits and deposits placed
with banks and financial institutions, trade receivables/
payables, bills receivable/payable and other receivables/
payables held by the Group.

Sensitivity analysis

The Group is mainly exposed to exchange rate
fluctuations of USD, EUR and RMB against the functional
currency of respective group entities, which is either
HK$ or RMB. As HK$ is pegged to USD, the exposure
to fluctuations in exchange rate of HK$ against USD is
considered insignificant and thus the effect on group
entities using HK$ as their functional currencies is not
considered in the sensitivity analysis.
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6. Financial Instruments (continueq)

6b.

Annual Report 2012/2013 —

Financial risk management objectives and policies
(Continued)

Market risk (Continued)

Sensitivity analysis (Continued)

The following table details the Group’s sensitivity to
a 3% (2012: 3%) increase and decrease in functional
currency of respective group entities against the
relevant foreign currencies except for EUR, of which
20% (2012: 20%) increase and decrease is used due
to the Europe Sovereign Debt Crisis which leads to
significant fluctuation on EUR. These percentages are the
sensitivity rates used when reporting foreign currency risk
internally to key management personnel and represent
management’s assessment of the reasonably possible
change in foreign exchange rates. The sensitivity analysis
includes only outstanding foreign currency denominated
monetary items and adjusts their translation at the year
end for a 3% change in foreign currency rates, for the
case of EUR, 20% (2012: 20%). A positive (negative)
number below indicates an increase (decrease) in post-
tax profit where the functional currencies of respective
group entities weaken 3% (EUR: 20%) against the
relevant currencies. For a 3% (2012: 3%), or in the
case of EUR, 20% (2012: 20%), strengthening of the
functional currencies of respective group entities against
the relevant currencies, there would be an equal and
opposite impact on the profit.

Impact of USD
Ep Rl
2013 2012
“E-=f —T-—F
HK$000 HK$000
FHET FET
Profit or loss for the year R4 F /18 - 250
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Impact of EUR Impact of RMB
BENE ARBHE
2013 2012 2013 2012
8-z —T--F ZB-Z§ _—T-_F%
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
FET FET FET FET
74 (25) 1,553 1,660

The above is mainly attributable to the exposure to time
deposits and deposits placed with banks and financial
institutions, outstanding receivables and payables at the
year end.
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6. Financial Instruments (continueq)

6b. Financial risk management objectives and policies
(Continued)
Market risk (Continued)
Interest rate risk
The Group is exposed to fair value interest rate risk in
relation to fixed-rate time deposits and deposits placed
with banks and financial institutions.

The Group is also exposed to cash flow interest rate
risk in relation to variable-rate secured bank loans. The
Group currently does not enter into any interest rate
swaps to convert floating rate to fixed rate obligations.
However, the management closely monitors interest rate
change exposure and will consider hedging significant
interest rate change exposure should the need arise.

The management considers the cash flow interest rate in
relation to variable-rate bank balances is insignificant and
therefore no sensitivity analysis on such risk has been
prepared.

Sensitivity analysis

The sensitivity analyses below have been determined
based on the exposure to interest rates for variable-rate
secured bank loans at the end of the reporting period.
The analysis is prepared assuming the secured bank
loans outstanding at the end of the reporting period
were outstanding for the whole year. A 10 basis point
(2012: 10 basis point) increase or decrease is used when
reporting interest rate risk internally to key management
personnel and represents management’s assessment of
the reasonably possible change in interest rates.

e MR ESMHE

HE2_-Z
6. &

6b.

—=HE=ZA=1T—HILFE

MEEBEEEERBE (&)

FAEEE ()

Fl% @5

A B B HE AR
FREMEBTRESALER
SRR

AEBEEHEEIBNERNRITAE
BERERAZRBRES N XA
R REBRERAETHNER
R ZEEAREENRLN B
2 BEESTYERMNXEY
REMEERERSEEBLIHTE
RS )l

EEEEZEIFHNNERITER
HRBHRESNFRBEERAR -
BOS ARG ZRARIEBRED
#r o

BB T

TXHHERERED TR B EHER
RERBEEERERMAZZH
FMEMERBRET - D HEHK
RIEARDAEERE 2 BEIFR
TERREFREEERME
F-RNBETEEEABERF R
[2 B By PR IE 10 B (=2 — =
F10EE) RIZE WRKRER
BHF RO e EEEH 2T E-



Annual Report 2012/2013 —E——FZ -8 —

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
For the year ended 31 March 2013

6. Financial Instruments (continveq)

6b.

Financial risk management objectives and policies
(Continued)

Market risk (Continued)

Sensitivity analysis (Continued)

If interest rates had been 10 basis point (2012: 10
basis point) higher/lower and all other variables were
held constant, the Group’s post-tax profit for the year
ended 31 March 2013 would decrease/increase by
HK$122,000 (2012: decrease/increase by HK$150,000).
This is attributable to the Group’s exposure to interest
rates on its secured bank loans.

Other price risk

The Group is exposed to interest rate risk and credit
risk through its unlisted debt investments and unlisted
investment funds classified as available-for-sale
investments and designated at FVTPL. The management
considers these risks are insignificant and therefore no
sensitivity analysis on such risks has been prepared.
However, the management will closely monitor such
exposures and consider hedging such exposures should
the need arise.
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6. Financial Instruments (continueq)

6b.

Financial risk management objectives and policies

(Continued)

Credit risk

The Group’s maximum exposure to credit risk in the
event of the counterparties’ failure to perform their
obligations at 31 March 2013 in relation to each class
of recognised financial assets is the carrying amount of
those assets as stated in the consolidated statement
of financial position. The Group’s credit risk is primarily
attributable to its trade receivables and the Group has
been largely dependent on a small number of customers
for a substantial portion of its business. The top three
customers represent over 93.9% (2012: 91.7%) of the
trade receivables and bills receivable at 31 March 2013,
which contributed the Group’s concentration of credit
risk by geographical location in Asia and Europe. The
failure of these customers to make required payment
could have a substantial negative impact on the Group’s
profits and liquidity. In order to minimise the credit risk,
management of the Group has credit approvals and
other monitoring procedures to ensure that follow-up
action is taken to recover overdue debts. In addition,
the Group reviews the recoverable amount of each
individual trade debt at the end of each reporting period
to ensure that adequate impairment losses are made
for irrecoverable amounts. In this regard, the directors
of the Company consider that the Group’s credit risk is
significantly reduced.

The credit risk on bank balances, liquid funds and
unlisted debt securities are limited because the
counterparties are reputable banks in Hong Kong or
financial institutions with high credit ratings assigned by
international credit-rating agencies.
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6. Financial Instruments (continueq)

6b.

Financial risk management objectives and policies
(Continued)

Credit risk (Continued)

Other than concentration of credit risk on trade
receivables set out above, and liquid funds which are
deposited with several banks or financial institutions with
high credit ratings, the Group does not have any other
significant concentration of credit risk.

Liquidity risk

In the management of the liquidity risk, the Group
monitors and maintains a level of cash and cash
equivalents deemed adequate by the management to
finance the Group’s operations and mitigate the effects
of fluctuations in cash flows. The management monitors
the utilisation of bank borrowings.

The Group relies on bank borrowings as a source
of liquidity. As at 31 March 2013, the Group had
available unutilised credit facilities of approximately
HK$129,000,000 (2012: HK$179,000,000).

The following table details the Group’s remaining
contractual maturity for its non-derivative financial
liabilities. The table has been drawn up based on the
undiscounted cash flows of financial liabilities based on
the earliest date on which the Group can be required to
pay. Specifically, bank loan with a repayment on demand
clause is included in the time band for earliest repayment
regardless of the probability of the bank choosing to
exercise its right. The table includes both interest and
principal cash flows. To the extent that interest flows are
floating rate, the undiscounted amount is derived from
interest rate curve at the end of the reporting period.
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6. Financial Instruments (continveq)

6b. Financial risk management objectives and policies

(Continued)

Liquidity risk (Continued)

Liquidity tables

2013 ~E-=f%

Financial liabilities at BHEE
amortised cost BHRA

Trade payables and ERESERR
bills payable e

Other payables HiEMERR

Secured bank loans BEARTER
- variable rate 2R

Weighted
average
interest rate

mE
THFE
%

1.6

mEMBRESHE

HE_Z
6. TR &

—=#=ZA=t—RALFE

6b. MBEABEERRRBE (&)

REELEE (&)
BB &

Carrying
Total amount at
Lessthan 3 months to 2t05 Over undiscounted 31 March
3 months 1 year years 5years  cash flows 2013
“E-=%
=fiA [k *F@ERE =A=1-H
PR=@A B-F 2n% RENE REHE ZEHE
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HKS 000 HKS 000
Tz Tz FET FET FEx Tz
329,337 5,488 - - 334,825 334,825
289 - - - 289 289
8,980 48,021 52,580 43,102 152,683 145,657
338,606 53,509 52,580 43,102 487,797 480,771




Annual Report 2012/2013 —Z——FZ_Z—=FFH

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

6b.
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For the year ended 31 March 2013 HE-_T—=F=-A=+—HILtFE
6. Financial Instruments (continueq) 6. €M IR »
Financial risk management objectives and policies 6b. MKREMREEBEERKE (£)
(Continued)
Liquidity risk (Continued) mEBELREE (&)
Liquidity tables (Continued) BBz (&)
Carrying
Weighted Total amount at
average Lessthan 3 months to 2105 Over  undiscounted 31 March
interest rate 3 months 1 year years 5 years cash flows 2012
“E—-F
g =R GES KhERE =A=t-A
FHME  SR=MEA —F BRE AFHNE mE R ZEEHE
% HK$'000 HK$ 000 HK$ 000 HK$ 000 HK$000 HK$000
TAL T T T FET FET
2012 “E-C-fF
Financial liabilities at g3V
amortised cost BHRA
Trade payables and ERESERR
bills payable ERER - 380,703 3717 - - 384,420 384,420
Other payables Hi e RaR - 376 - - - 376 376
Secured bank loans BHRBRTER
- variable rate =HE 1.8 9,178 27,431 104,492 48,967 190,068 179,436
390,267 31,148 104,492 48,967 574,864 564,232

Bank loan with a repayment on demand clause is
included in the “3 months to 1 year” time band in the
above maturity analysis as the repayment on demand
clause will only be effective 9 months after the end of
the reporting period. As at 31 March 2013 and 31 March
2012, the aggregate carrying amount of such bank
loan amounted to HK$22,200,000 and nil, respectively.
Taking into account the Group’s financial position, the
directors do not believe that it is probable that the bank
will exercise its discretionary right to demand immediate
repayment upon effective date of the repayment on
demand clause. The directors believe that such bank
loan will be repaid in 45 monthly instalments after the
end of the reporting period in accordance with the
scheduled repayment date set out in the loan agreement.

BARREKEZBGERI RSN
HERENBABT £ MBI
FIZEREERR2RITEEEL
MEER S AI=ZEAZE—F]
ZEREERN-R_T—=F=A
=+—RBAR-ZE——F=A=+—
B ZERTEEZEEESRNE
# £22,200,0007% 7T & T IT © 7T
RAER 7 AR RE  EEHEE
RIT T ARATRER B REBIGRER
HEZITEE BRI ERZ BB
B-EZHE ZSRTEEBR
BERRRETEHETEERB AR R
SHRAMN+REA S HEE-
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6. Financial Instruments (continveq)

6b.

6C.

Financial risk management objectives and policies
(Continued)

Liquidity risk (Continued)

Liquidity tables (Continued)

The amounts included above for variable interest rate
instruments for non-derivative financial liabilities are
subject to change if changes in variable interest rates
differ from those estimates of interest rates determined at
the end of the reporting period.

Fair value
The fair value of financial assets and financial liabilities
are determined as follows:

- the fair value of financial assets and financial
liabilities with standard terms and conditions and
traded in active liquid markets are determined with
reference to quoted market bid prices; and

= the fair value of other financial assets and financial
liabilities are determined in accordance with
generally accepted pricing models based on
discounted cash flow analysis.

The Group’s available-for-sale investments and financial
assets designated at FVTPL are measured at fair value
as detailed in notes 19 and 20. The directors consider
that the carrying amounts of all other financial assets
and financial liabilities recorded at amortised cost in the
consolidated financial statements approximate their fair
values.

e MR ESMHE

HE2_-Z

6.

—=HE=ZA=1T—HILFE

6b.

6¢C.

BERREEEEREE (&)

REBEZ/mE (F)
RBEZ X (&)

¥ BRZERNBEMNREELZ
BEtMERERER AL IE
TEMBREZZEETAZER

e

NEE
P EENGKABEZ AFEE
/N

- WBEEARMBRENTE
fiR TR e A5k A Be i BB AR B T
SR eMBmmSENEEE
R2E R

- HuMBKEERMBAEGER
B EREIEBEAFTN
FEREREDN -

AEBEZAHHEREREBIR
SN FEAEZHBEEETIA
RV ERE FBEENMFI19R
20 EFZRB/RNGAMBHRES
VABE SHPK AN RC 8% 2 P B EL At B 7%
BEMYHREZGRERER
FEEE-
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6. Financial Instruments (continueq)

6¢C.

Fair value (Continued)

Fair value measurements recognised in the
consolidated statement of financial position

The following table provides an analysis of financial
instruments that are measured subsequent to initial
recognition at fair value, grouped into Levels 1 to
3 based on the degree to which the fair value is
observable.

- Level 1 fair value measurements are those derived
from quoted prices (unadjusted) in active market for
identical assets or liabilities.

- Level 2 fair value measurements are those derived
from inputs other than quoted prices included
within Level 1 that are observable for the asset or
liability, either directly (i.e. as prices) or indirectly
(i.e. derived from prices).

- Level 3 fair value measurements are those derived
from valuation techniques that include inputs
for the asset or liability that are not based on
observable market data (unobservable inputs).

All the financial assets at FVTPL and available-for-sale
financial assets are grouped into Level 3 at the end of the
reporting period.

VR = B MY et

=y

HE2_-Z

—=HEZA=1T—HULFE

6. TRITH @)

6¢C.

DFE(E)
RGERBMRREERZ L FE
-F1g
TRARRFEENSERRE
BRI AZDI RAIBE
ZAVTEERESARF EES
=E-

- F-BATEMEFENE
18 1 0 O BB T 4B B M AR
ZAERAELBE (B

B

- B-EATEEHEDER
AETMFREE BEaE
RE—BR TR EREY
(f0: B 18) S BEE (20 K
AREE) ZAERBE-

- E=EATEEHENEL
FRTERRTSRIE L AE
B ERAE FRERA
8) 2H B

EEBRBERRAFEAE M
BEERAHHENBEETIR
BEHRDBR/E=E-
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6. Financial Instruments (continueq) 6.

6¢C.

Fair value (Continued)

e MR ESMHE

BE_T—==A=1+—HIIEE

6¢C.

Fair value measurements recognised in the
consolidated statement of financial position

(Continueq)

Reconciliation of Level 3 fair value measurements of

financial assets

At 1 April 2011
Total gains (losses):
— in profit or loss
— in other comprehensive income
Purchases
Settlements
Exchange difference

At 31 March 2012 and 1 April 2012

Total gains (losses):

—in profit or loss

— in other comprehensive income
Purchases
Settlements

At 31 March 2013

R-_ZE——FMA—H
wEF (EE) -
— 8%
—H 2w e
BE
e
EH =%
R-ZBE——HE=A=+—8BK
—E——FpWA—H
wEF (EE) -
—i8%
—H b2
BE
“E

R_T—=F=A=+—H

Of the total gains for the year included in ‘other gains
and losses’ in profit or loss, gains of HK$559,000
relates to unlisted investment funds held at the end
of the reporting period (2012: gains of HK$125,000).
Included in other comprehensive income is an amount
of HK$344,000 gain related to unlisted investment
funds and unlisted debt securities held at the end
of the reporting period and is reported as changes
of ‘investment revaluation reserve’ (2012: loss of

HK81,000).

ERMTH»)

DFE(E)
RGERBMRREERZ L FE
EiTE (&)

HEEEFE =L FEITEZH
3

Financial

Available- assets
for-sale designated
investments at FVTPL
ERER

RATETE
AHHERE ZHREE
HK$'000 HK$'000
FEIT FET
11,140 4,841
489 228

(597) -

1,656 8,188
(4,004) -

(28) (124)

8,561 8,078

400 639

(56) =
6,658 -

- (8,375)

15,563 5,342

AFEEFBARABFNETABRZEM
B KB 2 8 s 0 559,000
TEMNDEARERSHEREFE
ZHETEREES (T ——:
125,000 & F]) -5t AEM 2
MUz 2 B 7 A344,0007 7T 0 Bl
TEREREHERFTEZIE L
MREESRIFLTEBEES
W2y A REEHEE] 2&8
(ZZE—=:81,000/8TERE) -
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Segment Information

Information reported to the Company’s executive directors (the
chief operating decision maker) for the purposes of resource
allocation and assessment of segment performance focuses
on geographical regions.

The principal activities of the Group are manufacture and
distribution of household electrical appliance. The Group is
currently organised into four operating divisions — Europe
sales, Asia sales, America sales and other sales. The
information reported to the Group’s chief operating decision
maker for the purposes of resource allocation and assessment
of performance is based on these operating divisions.

Segment Revenues and Results
The following is an analysis of the Group’s revenues and

e MRS

HE_T—==A=1+—HIIEE

—ZEEB-—=-FFRK

EMEE

7w E#

EBEMEERRARAZIATES
(FERRADIMMBEREDBENE
FREEIR NI D BREA -

B BT AR BT 2

74 B3R 815 FAE E B 408 5 36« B
T B e - N
B2 MG BLEARE A ES

EZEEED B2 ERDERFTZD
B IR -

IHEEEREE
UTDREAEEZAIZHRREED

results for each of the reportable and operating segments.

Year ended 31 March 2013

HR R Rz e R R AR MR 2 9T

BE_F-—=F=A=1—-HIFE

Europe Asia America Others  Consolidated
B M Y Hit RE
HK$’000 HK$'000 HK$’000 HK$'000 HK$000
FET FET FET FET FET
(Note a)
(Hiita)
Segment revenue DEE ¥R 1,152,856 575,078 546,208 82,220 2,356,362
Segment profit 53 A 93,102 46,442 44,110 6,640 190,294
Other gains and losses (except gain Hit AR RER (HED
on disposal of property, plant and ¥ BEREBZBR
equipment and net exchange loss) FEREBRI) 1,251
Depreciation (except moulds) e (AR (70,269)
Increase in fair value of investment BREMEATELEM
properties 31,111
Finance costs B ER (2,934)
Unallocated income and expenses, net &7 B B A K 7 2 /548
(Note b) (ffszb) (16,323)
Profit before tax BR %% A 133,130
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7. Segment Information continueq)

mEMBRESHE

BE-2-=F-A=f+-ALFE

7. TEHER 2

Segment Revenues and Results (Continued) DEPEXBEREE (£)
Year ended 31 March 2012 BE-—F-——F-HA=+—HULFE
Europe Asia America Others  Consolidated
B GEb| EM Hith e
HK$'000 HK$ 000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
FHET FET FET FET FET
(Note a)
(Hizta)
Segment revenue NBEER 1,281,429 658,332 356,780 120,379 2,416,920
Segment profit 28535 7l 108,863 55,928 30,310 10,227 205,328
Other gains and losses (except gain HibBFIRER (LEY
on disposal of property, plant and ¥ BELSEZBFK
equipment and net exchange loss) FERBBRIN) (107)
Depreciation (except moulds) HE (RARKRIM) (50,209)
Increase in fair value of investment REMFEATFEEM
properties 20,747
Finance costs HMBER (2,469)
Unallocated income and expenses, net &2 EL AR A B B 32 /5 48
(Note b) (HiEb) (19,839)
Profit before tax R B AT A 153,451
Note a: Segment revenue in others represent revenue from Hiita - FIAEMMRE 2 53 & RS
destinations of shipment of products which individually fiE B i SMEEBBEERT
contributed less than 10% of total revenue of the Group. £10% °
Note b: Unallocated income and expenses represented other Kb © ROBEWA RS REHAUA

income, central administration costs and directors’ salaries.

PRITRERMEEFH -
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Segment Information (continuea)

Segment Revenues and Results (Continued)

The accounting policies of the reportable and operating
segments are the same as the Group’s accounting policies
described in note 3. Segment profit represents the profit
earned by each segment without allocation of other income,
central administration cost and directors’ salaries, other
gains and losses (except gain on disposal of property, plant
and equipment and net exchange loss), depreciation (except
moulds), increase in fair value of investment properties and
finance costs. This is the measure reported to the Group’s
chief operating decision maker for the purposes of resource
allocation and performance assessment. Revenue reported
above represents revenue generated from external customers.
There were no inter-segment sales in both years.

e MR ESMHE

BE_T—=—F=-A=1t—HILFE

DEER

PEEHEREE ()
ERREED B S HREARE
Bl SEF R MR - 5 /ﬁﬁﬂTJC
KB — D EARERMAEF IR
E’\Jﬁﬁﬂﬂ&)\"#‘%ﬁﬂl%ﬁﬁ&%%“
e HMBANREE (HEME BE

BB BN RFELBERIN) T
E(BEARIN) REWELFEILIN
ROBER - UEFEREEEEEE
REANTER  #ILEERD B R 1%
R o LAlFT¥ReG 2 SRR RINERE
FEIELR - EMFE NI AR A E 5B
HE o
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e MRS

S ML

For the year ended 31 March 2013 HE-T-—=F=A=+—HILFE
7. Segment Information (continueq) 7. 7EER 2
Segment Assets and Liabilities PHEEREE
The following is an analysis of the Group’ assets and liabilities NTHASBZUZERREESHD
by reportable and operating segment: MEERBEER:
Segment Assets TEEE
2013 2012
—E—-=F —E—_F
HK$’000 HK$'000
FET FET
Europe B 310,586 339,218
Asia D) 154,430 170,205
America EM 139,197 91,654
Others H b = 23,720 32,164
Segment assets DEEE 627,933 633,241
Unallocated assets ROBLEE
Available-for-sale investments AR EERE 15,563 8,561
Financial assets designated as FVTPL BREREATETFEZ
I EE 5,342 8,078
Time deposits and deposits placed with EHERRFRIEITR

banks and financial institutions TR B 139,377 169,683
Bank balances and cash ROTEFERRS 159,261 188,700
Investment properties "EME 242,100 210,989
Plant, equipment and machinery R~ 3% R i 3%

(except moulds) (ARSI 391,181 398,557
Club debentures SHRES 13,866 13,866
Other receivables E fth & W BR X 128,335 107,334
Tax recoverable FEIR A I8 962 2,210
Other unallocated assets (Note) HEMARDBEE (H:) 31,419 39,013

Consolidated assets e BE 1,755,339 1,780,232
Note:  Other unallocated assets comprised prepaid lease payments i EBEtRorREESEEMNEER

and deposits paid for acquisition of property, plant and

equipment.

BRENBEYME MEL&EL

)
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ﬁ? MRS

EE_T-=FEFR

=S

—F-=H=ASt+—AILEE

7. Segment Information (continueq) 7. DEER @
Segment Assets and Liabilities (Continued) PTHMEEREE (&)
Segment Liabilities P EHEE
2013 2012
—E—=F —Eg2—=
HK$’000 HK$ 000
FETT FET
Europe B 17,098 19,194
Asia M 7,615 8,786
America E M 8,124 5,306
Others H fth it & 1,215 1,808
Segment liabilities (Note) SESEE (K7at) 34,052 35,094
Unallocated liabilities Ao BE
Trade payables and bills payable BB ZERREMNEE 334,825 384,420
Other payables and accruals LA S BR 3R R E S AR A 175,090 182,108
Secured bank loans BEFRITER 145,657 179,436
Tax payable FES IR 41,468 41,251
Deferred tax liabilities RIERIE 17,719 16,185
Consolidated liabilities mReEaf’E 748,811 838,494
Note:  Segment liabilities represented mould deposits received by Kt BREATSZHR DEZ

each segment.

W

/

DEEE-
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For the year ended 31 March 2013 —TE=F=A=1t—RHIFE
7. Segment Information (continueq) 7. DEER @
Other Segment Information HeaBEar
Year ended 31 March 2013 QEZE—EﬂEEﬁE'ﬁ—Eﬂ:ﬁEE’
Total
Europe Asia America Others segment  Unallocated Consolidated
B [ EM HitE AREE AAR Ga

HK$ 000 HK$ 000 HK$ 000 HK$ 000 HK$ 000 HK$ 000 HK$ 000
FEx FEx FEx FEx FEx FEx FEx

Amounts included in the measure of segment profit or loss or LEEE R SR EM D 2% M HE
segment assets: B DMEE-
Additions to non-current assets ~ FERENEEREM 1,309 630 733 71 2,743 57,827 60,570
Depreciation ik 2,202 1,013 1,120 142 4,477 70,269 74,746
Amounts regularly provided to the chief operating decision g ¢hh Hﬂkﬁi\, FELEBRRAL
maker but not included in the measure of segment profit or BRBERTE 2D E0nm k&g
loss or segment assets: DEEE -
Interest income on bank deposits #1712 2 Fl M A - = = = - 1,505 1,505
Interest income on available-for-sale ] £ & % & 2 F| 8 S\

investments - - - - - 342 342
Rental income AgWA - - - - - 3,921 3,921
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7. Segment Information (continueq)

Other Segment Information (Continued)
Year ended 31 March 2012

HE_T—==A=1+—HIIEE

wa '\E’B ﬁ *ﬂ' (#&)

N
N

CoWER (&)
BE T —F=F=+—HIFE

Total
Europe Asia America Others segment  Unallocated  Consolidated
Bt T EM HitE PEAE AAR )
HK$ 000 HK$ 000 HK$'000 HK$ 000 HK$ 000 HK$'000 HK$ 000
FET FHET FAET FET FET FET FET
Amounts included in the measure of segment profit or loss or LD B2 RE 2/ D 2% F s &
segment assets: B D EEE-
Additions to non-current assets  FEREIEEE M 2,479 1,115 647 238 4,479 202,982 207,461
Depreciation bk 2,106 977 608 196 3,887 50,209 54,096
Amounts regularly provided to the chief operating decision IHERRE R E AT ECEREAL
maker but not included in the measure of segment profit or BrBEERFTEZ DR = EE 5
loss or segment assets: DEEE °
Interest income on bank deposits  $R1T77 5% 2 K| 8 A - - - - - 845 845
Interest income on available-for- AT &R E 2 FIEKA
sale investments = = = = = 430 430
Rental income ik ON - - - - - 3,771 3,771
Information about major customers FEEFMNEHR
Revenue from customers of the corresponding years AEBBBAHEETEI0%HIIA LEHRE
contributing over 10% of the total sales of the Group are as FPHRMREEERNT
follows:
2013 2012
—E—= —E——F
HK$ 000 HK$'000
FHET FET

Customer A (Europe, Asia, America and Others)

Customer B (Europe, Asia, America and Others)

Customer C (Europe, Asia, America and Others)

BEPA (BN - 22 - S

o fth 3 &% ) 1,046,162 1,006,530
ZEB(BUM M- =M
H bz ) 590,502 711,565

ZFHEC (BUM - g2 =M &
Hfth 3 & ) 318,500 269,031
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8. Other Income

Rental income
Interest on bank deposits
Building management fee income
Scrap sales
Interest on available-for-sale investments
Investment income from financial
assets at FVTPL
Others

e MR ESMHE

HE_T—=F=A=t+—HILFE

8. Hflt A

2013 2012
—E-=5F —Eg2—=

HK$’000 HK$'000

FET FET

s ON 3,921 3,771

HITH A 1,505 845

BFERBRA 734 699

SHEREm 1,271 544

AHEERE 2T & 342 430
BRBEREATEFEZ

‘ERA 33 =

Hh 540 428

8,346 6,717

9. Directors’, Chief Executive’s and

Employees’ Emoluments

(a) Directors’ emoluments

The emoluments paid or payable to each of the eight
(2012: eight) directors and the Chief Executive were as

9. EE THRIKEEME

(a) E=ME
EffENTeR (ZF——F:
BR)EERTTHRBRHEBZHE

follows: LN
For the year ended 31 March 2013 BEZ-—F—=F=ZHF=1+—HI
FE
Ms. Cheung ~ Ms. Cheung Mr. Lai Professor
Mr. Cheung  Mr. Cheung Lai Chun, LaiSee, M. Cheung Ah Ming, Lo Chung Dr. Chan Total
Lun Shu Wan Maggie Sophie Pui Leon Mau  How Chun 2013
FRtE  REBEE REYR:  RENaE FEEE  REPEE  ERAAR  REEEL &8
HKS$'000 HK$ 000 HKS 000 HK$ 000 HKS 000 HK$ 000 HKS'000 HK$ 000 HKS'000
&7 AT FET A7 FAT A7 AT bz AT
Fees ik - - - - - 100 - - 100
Other emoluments ~ Eftr %
Salaries and other 4R
benefits Hforh 2,946 2,662 1428 1,667 1,208 - - - 10,001
Bonus (note) T (M) 730 4,372 509 577 322 - - - 6,510
Contributions to RIBHG B
retirement benefits
schemes - 263 143 162 130 - - - 698
Total emoluments Wees 3,676 7,297 2,080 2,406 1,750 100 - - 17,309
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9. Directors’, Chief Executive’s and
Employees’ Emoluments (continueq)

(a)

Directors’ emoluments (Continued)
For the year ended 31 March 2012

B

e MR ESMHE

m=—= =

E_E-=F=A=1+—BHILFE

9. ES THRIEKREEME

Ms. Cheung  Ms. Cheung

Mr. Cheung  Mr. Cheung Lai Chun,
Lun Shu Wan Maggie

Lai See,
Sophie

FREE REEALE  REYxt  RENZL

(%)

(a) EB=ME (&)
BE—E-——F=F=+—HI

FE
Mr. Lai Professor
Mr. Cheung Ah Ming, Lo Chung Dr. Chan Total
Pui Leon Mau How Chun 2012
RIEEE  BREMEE ERKAR  REEAT &8

HK$ 000 HK$ 000 HK$ 000 HK$ 000 HK$ 000 HK$ 000 HKS 000 HK$'000 HK$ 000
FAT TET FAT AT FAT TAT T FAT &
Fees ik - - - - - 100 - - 100
Other emoluments ~ Ef#4
Salaries and other ~~ H& R
benefits Hib BT 2,959 2,711 1,435 1,584 1,315 - = - 10,004
Bonus (ot TEAT (Bzk) 1,140 7,311 671 749 584 = = = 10,455
Contributions to RIEFF B
retirement benefits
schemes - 263 143 162 130 - - - 698
Total emoluments Mok 4,099 10,285 2,249 2,495 2,029 100 - - 21,257

Note.: The performance related incentive payment is determined
with reference to the performance of the individual and
the Group.

Mr. Cheung Shu Wan is also the Chief Executive of
the Company and his emoluments disclosed above
include those for services rendered by him as the Chief
Executive.

Professor Lo Chung Mau waived his fees of HK$100,000
(2012: HK$100,000) for the year ended 31 March 2013.
Dr. Chan How Chun waived her fees of HK$100,000
(2012: HK$100,000) for the year ended 31 March 2013.
The Chief Executive and no other director waived any
emoluments for both years.

Employees’ emoluments

The five highest paid individuals in the Group in 2013 and
2012 were all directors of the Company and details of
their emoluments are included in (a) above.

Bra - ERIBEBES THRBERIA
TREBRIRE -

REREENMBARRZITHRAR
BOHEAKEZME D BEM
ERRETRERRBZER -

EREXHERBE=ZZT—=F
A=+ HLEWMEE®ES
100,000 L (Z T — %
100,000 7T)  BRZHFIFE TR E
E-_T—ZF=ZA=1+—HIK
FH®£100,0008TL (=T —=
% :100,000/ L) <8 BT
AL EMEEREEMENN

&

(b) EEMS
AREBR - T—=ZFR-_T——
FARUE=FSMERN AL
RAEARFIZEE HM&EHRE
R EX (@B -
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10. Other Gains and Losses

Net foreign exchange loss
Gain on disposal of property,
plant and equipment
Write-off of property, plant and equipment
Net gain on disposal of
available-for-sale investments
Net gain on financial assets designated
at FVTPL

11.Income Tax Expense

Current tax:
Hong Kong
PRC Enterprise Income Tax

Over (under)-provision in prior years:
Hong Kong
PRC Enterprise Income Tax

Deferred tax (note 26):
Current year

e MR ESMHE

HE_T—=F=A=t+—HILFE

10. Hw BRI R B #E
2013 2012
—E—=F —E——F
HK$°000 HK$'000
F#ET FHET
SME B 18 F R (7,106) (7,863)
HEWE BEMKEZBF
537 1,773
Y1 - BB &R R (95) (2,597)
HEJHRDERERTFE
400 489
EREREATENE TS
BEANFH 639 228
(5,625) (7,970)
1. 8RB X
2013 2012
—E—=f —E——fF
HK$°000 HK$'000
F#ET FEIT
KEEHE
BB 18,343 17,357
RS 4,792 7,880
23,135 25,237
BEFEBRERE (BETR)
=5 (379) (113)
RS 14 =
(365) (113)
EIERTE (K E26)
KEE 1,534 1,190
24,304 26,314
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11.Income Tax Expense (continued)

Hong Kong Profits Tax is calculated at 16.5% of the estimated
assessable profit for both years.

Under the Law of the People’s Republic of China on Enterprise
Income Tax (the “EIT Law”) and Implementation Regulation of
the EIT Law, the tax rate of the PRC subsidiaries is 25%.

The tax charge for the year can be reconciled to the profit
before tax per the consolidated statement of comprehensive

e MR ESMHE

HE_T—==A=1+—HIIEE

1. FIBHHEX @

M EF 2 BB EBHTAE R ER
B MIE16.6% 2 B K& -

RBFBEEEMETE ([FHBE]) R
BEHBOAAIR B AR OEERE
P18 /325% °

AEREZHBENRA HEEA2H N
WmERRZBRBADE AT

income as follows:

Profit before tax

Tax at the Hong Kong Profits
Tax rate of 16.5%

Tax effect of expenses that are not
deductible for tax purpose

Tax effect of income that is not
taxable for tax purpose

Effect of different tax rates in the PRC

Overprovision in respect of prior years

Tax effect of tax losses not recognised

Withholding tax on undistributed earnings

Others

Tax charge for the year

2013 2012
—_Z2—= —E——F
HK$’000 HK$ 000
FHET FET
B 52 A1 A 133,130 153,451
BEBNEH R E16.5%
21,966 25,320
TR R 2 7 2 Y FE AL
i 2 2 996 1,067
BRI 2 WA FE TR
piawlb A (6,165) (5,455)
RAEERTRTRME 2 ZE 2,635 1,905
BEFERERE (365) (113)
RERMIEBE E 4,081 2,520
RKAOBRF 2 FBME 982 920
HAb 174 150
REEHREZ L 24,304 26,314
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12. Profit for the Year

Profit for the year has been arrived at after
charging:

Staff salaries and allowances

Contributions to retirement benefits schemes
net of forfeited amount of nil
(2012: HK$66,960)

Total staff costs, including directors’
emoluments

Depreciation for property,
plant and equipment

Release of prepaid lease payments

Auditor’s remuneration

Interest on bank borrowings wholly
repayable within five years

Interest on bank borrowings not wholly
repayable within five years

Allan International Holdings Limited ZEfa BB & B AR LA 5

BE-T

SmEUBRE

—=#=ZA=t—RALFE

12, ZFEEimH

RERHENEHER T &E::

B T Hm Ri28s

RIKEFF IR
BBz Hk: &
:%—:i-%gm%m>

BETRA (BREEHE)

WE BEEREBITE

IR TR N HE IR

Z BB &

BRAFAZHEREN
AT R A

ARAFREER (F28)H
RIT A S

S

2013 2012

—E—-=F —F—=
HK$°000 HK$'000
FHET TET
325,880 274,575
13,419 12,352
339,299 286,927
74,746 54,096
706 809
2,390 2,333
2,190 1,708
744 761
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements  #ZR & B EEMEE

For the year ended 31 March 2013 BE_T—=F=A=+—RHIFE
13. Dividends 13. R 2
2013 2012
—E—=F —E—F
HK$’000 HK$'000
FHET FH&T
Dividends recognised as distribution FAEERIRE 2R E
during the year
2013 Interim dividend of HK2.5 cents —E-—FHhHEREFEER
(2012: 2012 interim dividend of 258 (ZF—=4F:
HK2.5 cents) per ordinary share —E-—FFERKRE 55%1IJJ ) 8,386 8,386
2012 final dividend of HK12.5 cents —E-—FREKREBER
(2012: 2011 final dividend of 1258 (=ZF—=4%:
HK15 cents) per ordinary share T ——FRARBA5EAL) 41,929 50,315
50,315 58,701
Subsequent to the end of the reporting period, a final dividend RFEHERE ETEZZREEE
of HK10.3 cents in respect of the year ended 31 March 2013 —Z— _¢ == ‘f‘— HEEREAK
(2012: final dividend of HK12.5 cents in respect of the year BEERI0IBIW(ZT—Z=F:12.5%
ended 31 March 2012) per share has been proposed by the i) o iR IR ?XZKHEH“ SN R VN
directors and is subject to approval by the shareholders in the RAREREBRTIRRBAFTFRE
forthcoming Annual General Meeting. The final dividend will be HibE YR —ZE—=FhA+/\BIK
paid on 18 September 2013 to shareholders whose names 17?5/\ T —=FN\A=ZFTHRIXK
appear on the Register of Members of the Company on 30 NEIR R AT ARER -

August 2013.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements  #R& B #& 3R & ZMisT

For the year ended 31 March 2013 (ZEE—=F=A=+—HILFE
. =
14.Earnings Per Share 14. BIR &R
The calculation of the basic earnings per share attributable to BRASREATEBEANEREF 2
the owners of the Company is based on the following data: STE BB TER
2013 2012
—E—=F —Eg2—=
HK$’000 HK$ 000
FHET FET
Earnings for the purpose of basic earnings HEREARRFTE 2&F
per share (Profit for the year attributable to (REFEEAHREART
owners of the Company) mAEAZRA) 108,826 127,137
Number of shares
BB E
2013 2012
—E—=f —F—=
‘000 ‘000
= F
Number of ordinary shares for the purpose of FLEREARREF|M S 2 L@
basic earnings per share f&fn 2 B 335,433 335,433
No diluted earnings per share has been presented for both EMFERBRTBECES 2 EBKR -
years as there were no potential ordinary shares in issue. U2 B 5 EREERF -
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements  #ZR & B EEMEE

For the year ended 31 March 2013 HE2 T =F=-A=+—HItFE
15. Investment Properties 15. REW =X
HK$'000
FET
FAIR VALUE DFE
At 1 April 2011 R-—Z——FWMWA—H —
Additions N 160,353
Transfer BA 29,889
Increase in fair value recognised in profit or loss NFAEIE NP 18 2= A R 20,747
At 31 March 2012 and 1 April 2012 N-E——F=A=+—HKWMA—H 210,989
Increase in fair value recognised in profit or loss NFEE IR 82 AR 31,111
At 31 March 2013 RZE—=F=H=+—H 242,100

During the year ended 31 March 2012, an import processing
factory of the Group which was situated on a piece of land
in the PRC ceased operation and management decided to
hold the land and factory for capital appreciation. Immediately
prior to the transfer, the directors assessed the recoverable
value of the factory building and concluded that the factory
building was with minimal recoverable value and therefore,
the carrying amount of HK$1,990,000 has been written off
and recognised as other gains and losses in the consolidated
statement of comprehensive income. As a result, the factory
building and the related prepaid lease payments in respect
of the land with carrying amount of nil and HK$12,251,000,
respectively, were transferred to investment properties at fair
value of HK$29,889,000 on 1 December 2011 due to the
change of usage as evidenced by end of owner-occupation.
The difference between the carrying amount and fair value of
the land which amounted to HK$17,638,000 was recognised
in consolidated other comprehensive income as property
revaluation reserve.

REE-_T——F=ZA=+—HIHF
EA - AEBENRTPRH—IELHAZ
—ERBNIHmEERILEE ME
BEREFBZ LM REENE KL
B BRzE8BA EFCTEREE
FAKREEE MERBBEETF
AW EEERE At FEEL
1,990,000/ 7T E #iBk R i 4r & 2 E K
ERERABEMKE REE - Bt - iR
H B % Bl 49 Z 7% 7T % 12,251,000 7T
LEBMEEFRBEMZ T AR
NEERBEER=_Z—F+=A
— B Z A F{E #129,889,000/% Jt & 5
EREME RAAEEFERILEBAM
WERAR -ZIHHZREABEEATES
%17,638,0008 TE R EMir G 2 E
WEERBMEEHHER-
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Allan International Holdings Limited Zxfa EIBEEE AR 2 &

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
For the year ended 31 March 2013

15. Investment Properties (continued)

The fair value of the investment properties as at date of
transfer, 31 March 2012 and 31 March 2013 have been arrived
at on the basis of a valuation carried out on these dates by
RHL Appraisal Ltd., independent qualified professional valuers
not connected with the Group. The valuation was arrived at by
reference to market evidence of transaction prices for similar
properties in the same locations and conditions. All of the
Group’s property interests held under operating leases to earn
rentals or for capital appreciation purpose are measured using
the fair value model and are classified and accounted for as
investment properties.

The carrying amounts of investment properties shown above
are situated on:

e MR ESMHE

BE_T—==A=1+—HIIEE

15. REW =X #)

RERBER -_ZT——F=A=1+—H
—E-—ZFZA=Z+—H AEEE
EMENATEHAEEAEEEBED
BUEEESERGHERMKFITHER
FARAGHETEM - GEIRETS
ZIRATERPERM R R GG ETT 1R
B ERAEE URIES & AL
BZASEMEMEER KRB AT
BEEAFE U BERARIIEREY
o

LARREEZREMRIIAR

2013 2012
—E—=£F —E——4F
HK$’000 HK$'000
FETT FET
Property in Hong Kong under long lease EARBMEIL LARE

MO EFE 210,600 181,100

Land outside Hong Kong under long lease A LASN 1 3 LA K B
GER P S2 ) 31,500 29,889
242,100 210,989

The Group has pledged the investment property located in
Hong Kong with a carrying value of HK$210,600,000 (2012:
HK$181,100,000) to secure the mortgage loan granted to the
Group.

AEBAESEBER EHBURE
7 BR M1H210,600,000/8 7T (Z & ——
£ :181,100,000/% 7T ) Ky X & ¥ ¥ 1
H I o
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

e MR ESMHE

1
For the year ended 31 March 2013 HE—_ZE—=F=ZA=+—HItFE
16. Property, Plant and Equipment 16. ¥ -BERRE
Furniture, Moulds Construction
Leasehold Factory  Plantand fixtures and and Motor in
land Buildings buildings  machinery  equipment tools vehicles progress Total
MEREM BERE HE %B

BENLH BF  IEN% RH#E k% HERIR RE  ERIRE At

HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$000 HK$'000 HK$000 HK$'000 HK$000 HK$'000 HK$000

TET AT TET AT TET AT TET FET TET
(Note a) (Note g)
(Hita)  (Hi#a)

COST RAE
At 1 April 2011 RZZ——FMmA—H 9,615 4,374 154,225 238,194 87,415 21,442 11,401 23714 550,380
Exchange adjustments SNERE - - 3,542 6,090 2,087 9 140 898 12,766
Additions HE = = 3,423 121,042 42,331 4975 447 35,043 207,461
Transfer @i - - 34,158 16,882 7,371 - - (58,411) -
Disposals/write-off HE /M - - (6,787) (9,300) (1,362) (75) - = (17,524)
At 31 March 2012 and WZE-Z%=A4
1 April 2012 =+-AkEA-A 9,615 4,374 188,561 373,108 137,842 26,351 11,988 1,244 753,083
Exchange adjustments MNERE - - 3,018 4,612 1,863 16 70 47) 9,532
Additions HE = = 772 18,615 35,631 2,865 2,179 508 60,570
Transfer @i - - - - 1,705 - - (1,705) -
Disposals/write-off HE /M - - - (4,288) (8,525) (72) (2,805) = (15,690)
At 31 March 2013 RZE-=F
=A=1+-AH 9,615 4,374 192,351 392,047 168,516 29,160 11,432 = 807,495
DEPRECIATION e
At 1 April 2011 RZZ——FMmA—A 232 4,374 41519 172,209 65,663 14,000 4,948 = 30,035
Exchange adjustments MERE - - 637 2,521 1,091 3 87 - 4,339
Provided for the year TEREAA 11 - 6,577 28,806 12,840 3,944 1,918 = 54,096
Eliminated on disposals/ HE /HkEEH
write-off = = (4,79) (8,634) (1,314) (62) = = (14,806)
At 31 March 2012 and WZE-Z%=A4
1 April 2012 =+-AREA-A 243 4,374 43937 194,902 78,280 17,975 6,953 = 346,664
Exchange adjustments MERE - - 347 2,154 573 8 55 - 3,137
Provided for the year TEREAA 10 - 7,579 38,729 21,985 4,613 1,830 = 74746
Eliminated on disposals/ HE /HkEEH
write-off = = = (3.920) (8,520) (72) (1,817) = (14,329)
At 31 March 2013 WZE-=F
=A=t+-AH 253 4,374 51,863 231,865 92,318 22,524 7,021 = 410,218
CARRYING VALUES REE
At 31 March 2013 RZE-=F
=Zf=t-8 9,362 - 140,488 160,182 76,198 6,636 4411 - 397,277
At 31 March 2012 RZE-ZF
=ZR=t-8 9,372 - 144,624 178,206 59,562 8,376 5,035 1,244 406,419
Note: Kiat -
(@  The buildings situated in the leasehold land had been fully @ RREHAEMRBRENLTHARED
depreciated but still in use by the Group. The leasehold land is TERE BNEASEFER &
situated in Hong Kong under long lease. HEMPBAEN AR ES KM

o
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

For the year ended 31 March 2013

16. Property, Plant and Equipment

(Continued)

The above items of property, plant and equipment, except for
construction in progress, are depreciated on a straight-line

basis at the following rates per annum:

Leasehold land under finance lease

Buildings and factory buildings
Plant and machinery

Furniture, fixtures and equipment
Moulds and tools

Motor vehicles

The carrying value of buildings and factory buildings

COmprises:

Buildings situated in Hong Kong
under long lease

Factory buildings situated outside

Hong Kong under medium-term lease

e MR ESMHE

BE-2-=F-A=f+-ALFE

16. ¥ -BERRE »)

LB EEME  BFE R&E (£
BRON) Z T E THIRIA T O R B A A

5_ N
MEHESHFEEN LI Over the lease terms
HEHR
BER IR E 4%
iR 5= 5% B A 28 15%
RE -EEREE 20 - 33 /2%
HANTA 20 - 33 /5%
R 20%
BFERIHYEZEEERRE:
2013 2012
—E—=F —T——F
HK$°000 HK$’000
FET FET
UREBEBZREHESET
MNREBAIINZ A HAEE
TRz 140,488 144,624
140,488 144,624
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e MR ESMHE

1]
For the year ended 31 March 2013 HE—_ZE—=F=ZA=+—HItFE

17.Prepaid Lease Payments 17. B EHENRIE
The Group’s prepaid lease payments comprise leasehold land AEEZENEERBREMLRE S

outside Hong Kong, under medium-term lease.

ASMNAFRERR S 2 HE L3 -

impairment loss was identified with reference to market value. Eitg e

2013 2012
—E-=5F —E——4F
HK$’000 HK$'000
F#ET FET
Analysed for reporting purposes as: EERA & 2T
Non-current assets ERBEE 27,835 28,185
Current assets MENEE 706 693
28,541 28,878
.Club Debentures 18. T fE 3
HK$'000
FET
CARRYING VALUE BREE
At 1 April 2011, 31 March 2012 and RZE——FMA—H"
31 March 2013 —E——_F#=ZA=+—Hk
—E—=%=A=+—H 13,866
The club debentures with indefinite useful lives are tested for EHRNEMESRSF 2 ERENR
impairment annually and whenever there is an indication that AREEFRBTRESERBE -ES
they may be impaired. The directors are of the opinion that no RIBEZXEMSEER RELEBTRE
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

For the year ended 31 March 2013

19. Available-For-Sale Investments

Unlisted investment funds
Unlisted debt securities

Analysed for reporting purposes as:

Non-current assets
Current assets

FLETREES
FELETEBE

EERAE 2 DI

FERBDEE
MENEE

The investments in unlisted investment funds and unlisted debt

securities are stated at fair value, which have been determined
by reference to prices provided by the counterparty financial
institution. As of 31 March 2013, the unlisted debt securities
carry interest either at fixed rates ranges from 4% to 5.625%

per annum or variable rates based on the London Interbank
Offered Rate plus a margin of 0% to 2.5% per annum. The
original maturity of these unlisted debt securities ranges from
three years to eight years (2012: from three years to eight
years) with maturity date from May 2013 up to April 2016.

e MR ESMHE

BE-_ T =—F=-A=1t—HILFE

19. AHHEERE

2013 2012
—E-=F —E——F
HK$’000 HK$’000
FET FET
5,102 =
10,461 8,561
15,563 8,561
12,467 8,561
3,096 =
15,563 8,561

#tm&ﬁ%i&#imfﬁ* EHIR
NEEAR HESSREEREE
BEg2E R_T—=ZF=ZA=+—
B 3EEMEBESZFEEEF
$¢EFEE¢§4%§5625%T\%‘%¥
B R ETE UmBIBITRERFE

(TLIBOR ) MR &

CEBRFBONE
25% TN E - FF LEMEBESFZ
A =ZFENFERE(ZE—
F H=ZFENF)IHEH=_T—

|1 sm

FRARE_ZT—XRFMA-
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

For the year ended 31 March 2013

20. Financial Assets Designated at

FVTPL

Unlisted investment funds
Unlisted debt investment

Analysed for reporting purposes as:

Non-current assets
Current assets

FLETREES
FLEMEHERE

TEERA®E 2 DM

FRBEE
MEEE

These represent unlisted investment funds and unlisted debt
investment redeemable or being disposable at the directors’
discretion with the total principal amounts of HK$5,342,000
(2012: HK$8,078,000). As at 31 March 2013, the directors
intended to hold these investments at least in the coming
twelve months from the end of the reporting period and

therefore they are classified as non-current assets.

The above financial instruments are measured at fair value at

the end of each reporting period.

i)

K

20.

EE_T-=FEFR

B ISERE E M

HE-_T—=F=A=1T—HILFE

FBERRATENE
MBEE

2013 2012

—E—=f —E——4F

HK$°000 HK$ 000

FET FHETT

5,342 6,565

- 1,513

5,342 8,078

5,342 6,565

- 1,513

5,342 8,078

B BEEEATELRLENIELT
&ﬁ%é&#tﬁﬁ%&ﬁ«ﬁxé
% ¥ 55,342, ooo,%m (ZE2—=4F:
8,078,000 L) cR=_E—=F = A
=+—8- é%ﬁ hﬁ%%&ﬁi
BB kR4 BELRE+ZE
A WE%%TXQ/\*EEQE/}HJ@Jg%

PRI ARE@EA

e

EERARFE
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

e MR ESMHE

For the year ended 31 March 2013 HE—_ZT—=F=ZA=+—HItFE
21.Inventories 21. 78
2013 2012
—E-=F —E——4F
HK$'000 HK$'000
FET FET
Raw materials R A 32,424 28,812
Work in progress & m 16,864 16,227
Finished goods SIPK i 36,600 48,742
85,888 93,781
22.Trade Receivables and Bills 22. EIWE ZIRA K EWEE
i i /E A e LIQE-E*’"
Receivable/Other Receivables A IS W Rk FA
2013 2012
—EBE—-=F —E——%F
HK$°000 HK$'000
FETT FET
Trade receivables JEUE B BR K 515,745 509,016
Bills receivable FE W R 1,641 337
517,386 509,353
Other receivables (Note) Hth JEUBR 5 (A7 aE) 128,335 107,334
Total trade and other receivables W E SERFT K
H b e W BR Sk 4B 58 645,721 616,687
Note:  As at 31 March 2013, the Group’s other receivables mainly HE: R-E-Z=%=A=+—HB'&

include value added tax recoverable of HK$119,203,000
(2012: HK$97,608,000), which will be repayable within one
year.

SENHEMEKRERETEZER
119,208,000/ 70 (=T — =4 :
97,608,000/ 7T ) 2 7] Y [l 3 (B
IR —FEARYE -
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
For the year ended 31 March 2013

2. EWESERFREREE

22. Trade Receivables and Bills

Receivable/Other Receivables
(Continued)

The Group maintains defined credit period of up to 90 days.
The following is an aged analysis of trade receivables and bills
receivable presented based on the invoice date at the end
of the reporting period, which approximated the respective
revenue recognition date:

0 - 90 days 0-90H
91 - 120 days 91 - 120H
Over 120 days HBiB120H

Before accepting any new customer, the Group has assessed
the potential customer’s credit quality and defines credit limits
by customer. In addition, the Group reviews the repayment
history of receivables by each customer with reference to
the payment terms stated in contracts. In determining the
recoverability of a trade receivable, the Group considers any
change in the credit quality of the trade receivable from the
date credit was initially granted up to the reporting date. In the
opinion of directors, the trade receivables that are neither past
due nor impaired were of good credit quality based on good
repayment history at the end of the reporting period and no
impairment is necessary for these balances.

Included in the Group’s trade receivable balance are debtors
with an aggregate carrying amount of HK$106,647,000 (2012:
HK$35,740,000) which are past due at the reporting date
for which the Group has not provided for impairment loss as
there has not been significant change in credit quality and the
amounts are still considered recoverable. The Group does not
hold any collateral over these balances.

S H W RN ()

AEERVABEERHEZEIOR - ATR
FEWE 5 RA R ERERERHRSE B A
BEAMAER ZRRON KK BZ
EEEEREH:

2013 2012
—E—=5F —E——4F
HK$’000 HK$'000
FET FE T
431,117 485,266
86,210 24,032

59 59

517,386 509,353

REBEMEF TP NEBE A E
EEFZEEERREEFPAERE
REE - ULSN REBBES KT Z
FEFRIEEFEEREERZRL
o SEZEREREESEINEEDH
ERBEAZEEERARAENRE
VAR TE PR W E 5 fR k2 FTUR B © TR
TH EERR ENNRELRI
BHEEEZGEREEIRZRIFYE
RESREE WA HEERZFHRE
AE °

AEERKEBESRZABERAES
$#106,647,0008 L (Z T — = 4F:
35,740,000% 7T ) 2 FE U BR 3K+ 3% BR 3K
IR E B HAE B HA{R I & 1F R E &
BREE AEEERWSEARE [
B £ B B iZ ZOE R AT IR [E] o AN S B 37 4
MZEFRIEFEEAER®D-
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For the year ended 31 March 2013

22. Trade Receivables and Bills
Receivable/Other Receivables
(Continued)

Aging of trade receivables which are past due but not impaired
presented based on the overdue date:

Overdue 0 — 90 days #BHA0 - 90H
Overdue 91 — 120 days iBEA91 - 120H
Overdue more than 120 days iBHEAEE B120H

The Group performed assessment on individual trade
receivable balance and recognised allowance on specific
balance when necessary. In the opinion of the directors, there
was no allowance for doubtful debts as at the end of both
reporting periods.

The Group does not hold any collateral over trade and other
receivables and bills receivable. The Group has not provided
for impairment loss as the directors assessed that these
balances will be recovered base on their settlement records.

22. B
S H

%—? B mEFHEE

—F-SF=ASt+—AILEE

g 3 RE &@W =I5
HaEWERR

BESELE A NS BER B
RESHE 2 BB

2013 2012
—E—=F —Eg2—=

HK$’000 HK$ 000

FET FE T

105,110 35,740

1,535 -

2 —

106,647 35,740

REBNEEERWE HRGERR - I
F\%%HTWZ%H—‘ iﬁﬁﬁﬁnu%ﬁ %%wu
7%+ T P {1E] S 5 HA il 4 2R B 7 8 R AR B
e

ARG E LB 5 S A B U ER K K
RUREREEMERR EFENK
RALERRT 2 TSR A W E - AR S
I 8 B X T IR ME R E R R
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements  #ZR & B EEMEE

For the year ended 31 March 2013 HE—_ZE—=F=ZA=+—HItFE
23. Time Deposits and Deposits 23. EHiIFRMERBITRS
Placed With Banks and Financial BB ERRITHEE
Institutions/Bank Balances and SHEE
Cash
(@) Time deposits and deposits placed with banks and (a EHERNFTRBITRSEEKE
financial institutions ZEXR
2013 2012
—E—=F —E——4F
HK$°000 HK$'000
FETT FET
Time deposits placed with banks FRIRITZEHRER 135,841 164,831
Deposits placed with FREBEE TR
financial institutions 3,536 4,852
139,377 169,683
Time deposits and deposits placed with banks and EHFERMFRIRET RS EE
financial institutions carry fixed interest rates with B2BERAEERERAMEZE
effective interest rates ranging from 0.01% to 3.1% 8 R EFEBH0.01%E31%
(2012: 0.01% to 3.1%) per annum. (ZZE—ZF:001%%E3.1%) °
(b) Bank balances and cash (b) SRITEBFEMBEL
Bank balances carry interest at market rates which range RITRBFEMSMNEEGFE  F
from approximately nil to 0.35% (2012: nil to 0.5%) per BHTE035% (ZT——F: %
annum. £0.5%) °
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B ISR & E A

BE-_ T =—F=-A=1t—HILFE

24. Trade Payables and Bills Payable 24,

25.

The following is an aged analysis of trade payables and bills
payable presented based on the invoice date at the end of the

reporting period:

0 - 90 days
91 — 120 days
Over 120 days

Secured Bank Loans

Secured bank loans,
with carrying amount repayable:

Within one year
— With repayable on demand clause
— Without repayable on demand clause
More than one year, but not exceeding
two years
More than two years, but not exceeding
five years
More than five years

Less: Amount due within one year shown
under current liabilities

Amount due after one year

0-90H
91 - 120H
BiE120H

25.

BNEZRARENRE

R Res  BEREaHN2
R E 5 R E R R IR B AT
o

HRRITEF BRTIIHE

EEZRAE:

—FA
—ﬁﬁ?ﬁﬁ%ﬁgjﬂafa
—RARER IR ESKI(E)

ER—F - BETHEBMEF

ERMF - BETBBREF

AFNUE

B SIRRRBEEL
—FRERTR

ﬂ
}

—FREREH

The bank loans are variable-rate borrowings which carry
interest at 1-month Hong Kong Interbank Offered Rate
(‘HIBOR”) plus a range of 0.8% to 2.75% (2012: 1-month
HIBOR + 0.8% to 2.75%) per annum, which ranging from
1.0% to 2.95% (2012: 1.1% to 3.05%) per annum, thus
exposing the Group to cash flow interest rate risk.

2013 2012
—E—=5F —E——4F
HK$°000 HK$’000
FETT FE T
298,375 352,202
30,385 28,461
6,065 3,757
334,825 384,420
/= A =
KRB ITE K
2013 2012
—E-—=5F —E——-F
HK$ 000 HK$000
FETT FETT
BN 22,200 =
B RN 31,929 33,779
26,379 54,128
23,740 44,996
41,409 46,533
145,657 179,436
(54,129) (33,779)
91,528 145,657

RITERRTFDFIEZ2EE FEEXAE
’5%%& TRIZHE (—@ A ) M0.8%E
2.75% (ZE——F : HAFRITRER
BM(—1{EA)0.8%E2.75%) » £ IE
EHRFEB1.0%E2.95% (—ZT——4F:
¢E1 1%Z2£3.05% ) ' < EBHATH
i/m@]ﬂ_z_zmﬁ““’
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
For the year ended 31 March 2013

26. Deferred Tax Liabilities FEIEHIEEE

The following are the major deferred tax liabilities recognised
and movements thereon during the current and prior years:

TIRARNFERAMFAC THRRAZE
EREEHAERBEANER 2EH):

Withholding
tax on
distributable
Fair value  Accelerated profit of
changes tax  subsidiaries
of property  depreciation in PRC Total
ARG
L/ A2 BLE R 2
AFESE MEHREFTN BB R
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$000 HK$'000
T87T T8 T8 78T
At 1 April 2011 RZZE——FmMA—H - 5,997 3,652 9,649
Charge to profit or loss REBEZ IR - 270 920 1,190
Charge to other comprehensive R E M2 WS TR
income 5,346 - - 5,346
At 31 March 2012 and R-E—_%F
1 April 2012 ZA=+—HkK
—T-_FWH—-H 5,346 6,267 4,572 16,185
Charge to profit or loss RIEE R IR 486 66 982 1,534
At 31 March 2013 RZT—=%F
=RA=+—8 5,832 6,333 5,554 17,719

Since the transfer of factory building and the related prepaid
lease payments as mentioned in note 15, the Group
recognised deferred tax liability on change in fair value of
the investment property in PRC taking into account the land
appreciation tax and enterprise income tax payable upon sale
of the investment property.

The Group did not recognise deferred tax assets arising from
tax losses of HK$43,926,000 (2012: HK$19,192,000) due
to the unpredictability of future project streams.
in unrecognised tax losses are losses of approximately
HK$41,101,000 (2012: HK$14,684,000) that will expire in
2017 (2012: expiring in 2016). Other losses may be carried
forward indefinitely.

Included

MR IWmYERA@EOBENEENE
BERKF1RE  A&EEREARE
MERLEMBHEER A FEEER
R WEERIINLEVERFFTN L
I ER R FEER

AEEVEREREEHRESE  RA
AEATERT A843,926,0008 T (=&
— — % :19,192,000/8 7T ) Z A KA B
ﬁﬁ%?imﬁﬁﬁﬁoa%ﬁﬁﬁ
RAIEEIBAAI41,101,00058 7T (=
—:iw¢%4wm®ﬂ%@~%m
—tFHH(ZE——F:BR=
T—NFEIE) o Hqth B3 18 AT g £ R A7

fmEs -
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27.Share Capital

Ordinary shares of HK$0.10 each & AREE0.10/E T2
Authorised: EERA
At beginning and end of the year R F]) R 5F 4 5
Issued and fully paid SR SP & Py N
At beginning and end of the year REY R F 4

e MR ESMHE

BE_T—==A=1+—HIIEE

27. IR

2013 & 2012 2013 & 2012
—E-=FR ZE-Z=ZFR
—E-—F -

Number of
shares HK$'000
RiTEE FEIT

L AR

600,000,000 60,000
335,432,520 33,543

28.

Share Option Scheme

The original share option scheme of the Company adopted
on 20 August 2002 expired during this year. Pursuant to the
Company’s share option scheme (the “New Scheme”) adopted
on 8 August 2012 for the primary purpose of providing
incentives to directors and eligible employees, the directors
and employees of the Company may, at the discretion of the
Company’s directors, be granted options (the “Options”) to
subscribe for shares in the Company (the “Shares”) at a price
determined by its directors, but shall not be less than the
highest of (i) the closing price of the Shares as stated in the
Stock Exchange’s daily quotation sheet on the date of the offer
of grant, which must be a trading day; (ii) the average closing
price of the Shares as stated in the Stock Exchange’s daily
quotation sheet for the five trading days immediately preceding
the date of the offer of grant; and (iii) the nominal value of the
Shares.

Without prior approval from the Company’s shareholders, the
total number of shares in respect of which options may be
granted under the New Scheme is not permitted to exceed
10% of the shares of the Company in issue at any point in
time, and the number of shares in respect of which options
may be granted to any individual in any one year is not
permitted to exceed 1% of the shares of the Company in issue
at any point in time.

28. 5 IR AT &I

AARRZZEZE_FNA -+ HEMR
2 RBEERETEERFREE - RE
KRR E——FNANBERZ
BT E ([T E]) - AR
AESEAMNEREBERETARAF
CEEREEURBARARF ZRMD
RIEEHESSET  HETFER T
—ERZESE (BRORELHFLE
REZBE (BARSH)ZWME (M
Bt AP B MERFARGLARZE) ; ()RH R
TARTEREEERAERSBZ
FHWHE (ABRMARERAEE R
A R (iR D EE -

WWRBARARIRRBEBE 1TER
TR AR B BT DR F
BBARRNEMBFEE H#TRAZ
10% RETIRMDAAE T @R AL IS
BBARFANEMHEEETRAZ
1%
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28.

29.

Share Option Scheme (continueq)

The New Scheme will remain in force for a period of ten
years from the date of its adoption. Options granted must
be taken up not later than 28 days after the date of grant. A
consideration of HK$1 is payable on acceptance of the offer of
grant of an option. An option is exercisable on the date when
the offer for the grant of options is made but shall end in any
event not later than 10 years from the date of grant of the
options.

No options have been granted during the year under the two
schemes.

Related Party Disclosures

(@) Rental expenses paid or payable by the Group to the
related parties are as follows:

Immediate holding company BEERAA
Allan Investment Company Limited LD EBR AR
Fellow subsidiaries BN =N
Income Village Limited HEBRA A

Fair Pacific Limited BEFR A A
Director of the Company REES

Mr. Cheung Pui SR T SR A

e MRS

——EE-B-=FFH

EMEE

BE_T—=—F=-A=1t—HILFE

28.

20. b

BRESTE o)

MBEREASNER AR REER
BREANEAREFI0F -BERT 2B
Hﬁ%%\»ﬁf&‘%fﬁQB?ﬁWu/uﬁg /,\/H.‘I

FBTLIER R B RE 2 (8 - e % M
WABER 1T - R EREZROE A

B WEAABER T A EERIR R
% #E B Hi R 5T104F ©

BRI BIPNEE 1 - I 1 TR
B
HEERMEALIRSZZEE

(@ AEBEfMNHENESAXTT
FIEREAL:

2013 2012
—E—-=5F —E——4F
HK$’000 HK$'000
FET FE T

900 900

204 204

984 984

663 653

113
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For the year ended 31 March 2013 HE_T—=F=-A=+—HILtFE

29. Related Party Disclosures (continued)

At the end of the reporting period, the Group had commitments
for future minimum lease payments under non-cancellable
operating leases with immediate holding company, fellow
subsidiaries and a director of the Company which are included
in note 30 and fall due as follows:

Immediate holding company =532 &N

Within one year —FR

In the second to fifth year inclusive F_FEFRFNA
(BEEMFEBEEA)

Fellow subsidiaries A Z K1 /E 2 7]

Within one year —F A

In the second to fifth year inclusive F_FEEFRFN
(EEMEBEEAN)

Director of the Company NAJEE

Within one year —F R

In the second to fifth year inclusive F_FEFRFA
(BEEMFBEFEEA)

Certain directors of the Company have controls in Allan
Investment Company Limited, Income Village Limited and Fair
Pacific Limited. Mr. Cheung Pui is a director of the Company.

(%)

20. BEREAL R 2IRE

REER AEBREZEZERARFH
EMBRAAIR—EE 2 A HEH
LEHE (B BEENES0) B
RERERNBEAZNT:

2013 2012
—E—=f —E——4F
HK$°000 HK$ 000
FET FHETT
900 900

- 900

900 1,800
1,188 1,188
1,968 204
3,156 1,392
675 664

169 830

844 1,494

AR NEFTHEMREGRL
7 REERATREBERATGE
B RIF R ERARRIZES-
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For the year ended 31 March 2013 BHE-_Z—=F=A=+—HILFE
29. Related Party Disclosures (continued) 20 HEBEALIRZZHE
(&)
(o) The remuneration of key management personnel, being b) REREFTEEBABZHME A
the directors of the Company, during the year was as RARIZESWT:
follows:
2013 2012
= —ET——fF
HK$’000 HK$'000
FHET FH&T
Short-term employee benefits HHEBTREA 16,611 20,559
Post employment benefits RIRAE 698 698
17,309 21,257
The remuneration of directors is recommended by EEzMe NEMENE THRX
the remuneration committee having regard to the R migBERER AFHNEE
performance of individuals, market trends and conditions SRIEZ B REB RESTT
with a view to retain and motivate executives. BABH#BE RSB -
30. Operating Leases 30. £EHE
The Group as lessee AEBERARAA
2013 2012
—E—=F —E——F
HK$’000 HK$ 000
FHET FE&T
Minimum lease payments paid during AEEREEREMHE
the year under operating leases in SR L K
respect of rented premises 2,924 3,141
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30. Operating Leases (continuea)

The Group as lessee (Continued)

30.

At the end of the reporting period, the Group had
commitments for future minimum lease payments under non-

cancellable operating leases which fall due as follows:

Within one year
In the second to fifth year inclusive

Over five years

—FR
F_EEFRFNA

(ERMEBREERN)
FFLE

Operating lease payments represent rentals payable for rented
premises. Leases are negotiated for an average term ranging
from three to five years (2012: three to six years) and rentals

are fixed throughout the lease period.

The Group as lessor

Property rental income earned during the year was
HK$3,921,000 (2012: HK$3,771,000). The property held has
committed tenants for the next two years (2012: two years).

At the end of the reporting period, the Group had contracted

with tenants for the following future minimum lease payments:

Within one year
In the second to fifth year inclusive

— R
E-FEEAER
(BRMEaEER)

e MR ESMHE

BE_T—==A=1+—HIIEE

EEBEHE »)

AEBEREBEA(Z)

REE R AEERAYE 2 T HE
EEHEmME XN RFREEMBEE
ZEEMT

2013 2012
—E—-= —T——F
HK$’000 HK$ 000
FET FET
2,777 2,924
2,196 1,995

- 11

4,973 4,930

LEMENFEYERNZEE HE
REFZELAF (ZE—ZF:ZFEAX
F)HARBEENEERAN ZEE JHE

—
JE °

AEEELAEEA
FARYEMEE WA AE3,921,000% 7T
(ZZT——4:3,771,0008 L) # A
B % B F P2 A R R E L
(ZZ—Z=F :MF) -

RER B ARBEEBES P MR E
RIEBASITLEH:

2013 2012
—E-=F —ET——F
HK$’000 HK$ 000
FET FETT
3,875 3,045
3,184 896
7,059 3,941
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31. Capital Commitments

Capital expenditure contracted
for but not provided in the consolidated
financial statements in respect of:
— acquisition of property, plant and
equipment
— construction of a factory plant

Capital expenditure authorised but not
contracted for in respect of acquisition of
property, plant and equipment

32. Pledge of Assets

The Group has pledged certain leasehold land under finance
lease and investment property having carrying amounts of
HK$9,240,000 (2012: HK$9,251,000) and HK$210,600,000
(2012: HK$181,100,000) respectively as at 31 March 2013 to
secure general banking facilities and mortgage loan granted to

the Group.

Annual Report 2012/2013 =

e MRS

——EE-B-=FFH

EMEE

BE_T—=—F=-A=1t—HILFE

31. EARAEIE

2013 2012
—E-—=F —E——4F
HK$’000 HK$'000
FET FET
DB L) 2 BAREYE
BERREATBREERN
RBEFRAE:
-BEEME BENMRE
3,761 14,389
— 2RI - 554
3,761 14,943
SHEBRELHZ
BARAEYSREEME-
BB K 5% 44,070 71,640
47,831 86,583
32. EEIKH
AEBR_ZE—=ZF=ZA=+—
HE B mEE 5 59,240,000
T (ZZT—Z-4%:9,251,000% 7T )
}%210,600,0008 70 (=& — —4F:

181,100,000/8 /L) 2 & TR B THE #5

BRI METREEYE  MMEAR
SEERZ —RRTEERRBER

Z A
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33. Retirement Benefits Schemes

The subsidiaries operating in Hong Kong participates in both a
defined contribution scheme registered under the Occupational
Retirement Schemes Ordinance (the “ORSO Scheme”) and
a Mandatory Provident Fund Scheme established under the
Mandatory Provident Fund Schemes Ordinance (the “MPF
Scheme”) in December 2000. The assets of the schemes are
held separately from those of the Group, in funds under the
control of independent trustees.

The ORSO Scheme is funded by contributions from employees
of 5% of their salaries. The employers will contribute based on
the monthly salaries of employees according to the following
schedule:

e BwEEMEE

HE—_ZT—=F=A=t+—HIFE

33.

RIKERETE

KB QRS HEMIATE R E
MR BRI S B RBIERD ([RFE
B D ERER=ZZTEF+-AK
MR HIMEATEE GO 2B EATE
it 8 ([RESFE]) %HEEE
HEASBEERDRATR BHEEHR
BEREAMERIZBLIESRE -

2mrEetElZER  BARKAA
B Z5% o B E M ARIE AT EHIRETE
SABREHRZHRE:

Rate of
Number of completed years of service contribution
52 X AR % & HA e
Not more than 5 years DREAEF 5%
More than 5 years but not more than 10 years ZRAFETLZNI104F 7.5%
More than 10 years ZRTF 10%

The employees are entitled to the full benefit of the
subsidiaries’ contributions and accrued returns after
participating in the ORSO Scheme for 10 years or more, or
at an increased scale of 30% to 90% after participating in
the ORSO Scheme from 3 to 9 years respectively. Where
an employee leaves the employment prior to becoming
fully entitled to the employer’s contributions, the excess
contributions are forfeited and the employer may utilise the
forfeited contributions to reduce its future contributions. At 31
March 2012 and 2013, the Group had no material unutilised
forfeited contributions in the ORSO Scheme which may be
used to reduce the Group’s future contributions.

2MREeTEMTE2ES AI2E
ZEMBARIAEEH CHIBRE
HRFNE BELINFHAIEIF  EE
1 ZB30%E0%E * 2 K o feilE
BRAREEBRIE B E = HRATBER -
B P TR miEERERFA
R IR BB BN 2 R B E
—E—_—_RKR-FTE—=%=ZHA=+—H
1F REERE EA LUK ATEHR
BB HKER-
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33. Retirement Benefits Schemes 33. RIRERIET &l 2

(Continued)

The MPF Scheme is available to all employees aged 18 to 65
and with at least 59 days of service under the employment in
Hong Kong. Contributions from employers and employees are
5% each of the employee’s relevant income. The maximum
relevant income for contribution purpose is HK$20,000 per
month which was revised to HK$25,000 per month with
effect from 1 June 2012. The employees are entitled to the
full benefit of the Group’s contributions and accrued returns
irrespective of their length of service with the Group but
the benefits are required by law to be presented until the
retirement age of 65.

The employees of the subsidiaries operating in the PRC are
required to participate in a central pension scheme operated
by the local municipal government. The contributions for the
scheme in the PRC are made based on a percentage of the
average salary as advised by the relevant authority in the PRC.
The contributions are charged to the consolidated statement of
comprehensive income as they become payable in accordance
with the rules of the central pension scheme. The subsidiaries
operating in the PRC also contributed to a local municipal
government retirement scheme for all qualified employees in
the PRC. The employer and its employees are each required to
make contributions to the scheme at the rates specified in the
rules.

The only obligation of the Group with respect to the retirement
schemes in the PRC is to make the retired contributions under
the schemes. No forfeited contribution is available to reduce
the contribution payable in the future years.

BIERETEI R AT B 18E6SHm X ERN
BEAREZLS9B 2 EEZ N - AKE KIE
BEFHRBEEZEBAEIEL%
R RHFIME  BERAASLRR
H H20,00087T WAH=ZE—=F,\H
—BRABIEE] AT A25,0008 7T - Tk
HRALBE 2 RGFE  EEHPHIS
REEZ2IHEFER LT IR - HERE
=R BT = AR B B R INFBR655%
77 A GEHR o

TENBRARZEEFTESMAMT
BT EE 2P RIBKRERFHE] - R ER
ZEFEHEIRETEEHEE RATR
@& P TEBMDLEEHR - HHRE
FiRa 2mE Bk ANk - BRIEHR R
BAREFT B Z RO IR - B
B B 2 )42 3 & B AR K 48 U AT 2
MRIMBeEBBEANEBT - EENMEEY
IR TE IR BI B LE R A Rx R B R o

HAREBRE AR —FEAEZR
PRELTR < 28 B IR W SR AT VR IRLAES A% 2K
FEAS AR o
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34. Particulars of Principal Subsidiaries  34. K QAT 2 X EME A 7
i

—=ER-T--%=5

Particulars of the Company’s subsidiaries as at 31 March 2013

and 2012, all of which are wholly-owned subsidiaries of the =t+—H KARZE2ENBRRFE
Company, are as follows: AR

Place of

incorporation Issued and fully

or registration/ paid share capital
Name of subsidiary operations or registered capital Principal activities
WEARAE AMRIREREERYE ERTRARCRASIEMESR TEXE
Allan Electric Mfg., Limited Hong Kong 100 ordinary shares of HK$10 each and  Investment holding
TREXHERRAA B 50,000 non-voting deferred shares of & ¥k

HK$10 each

100R% &A% B & 1078 7T 2 L @ A% %50,000
BERAEI10B T ELEEETRG

Allan International Limited* British Virgin Islands/ 55,000 ordinary shares of HK$1 each Investment holding
Hong Kong 55,000k SR EE 1AL LBk REER
RBRLBE/BR
Allan Mould Manufacturing Limited Hong Kong/PRC 100 ordinary shares of HK$1 each Manufacturing of plastic
TR TEEEFRAR &5,/ ® 100 EREEIB T EBR injection moulds
EEFBEA
Allan Plastic Mfg., Limited Hong Kong 3,005 ordinary shares of HK$1 each Property holding
TREBHERRT s 3,005k B R EETE T < KB and Trading of
household electrical
appliances
RANEREEREES
Allan Toys Manufacturing Limited Hong Kong 270,000 ordinary shares of HK$10 each  Inactive
ShRnARRERATF Bt 270,000k BIREE10E T2 T BR EEXK
DRIZFRE (EMNBRAAF PRC* Registered capital of USD42,000,000 Manufacturing of
h #E & 442,000,000 7T housshold electrical
appliances and
plastic parts
EERESSER

BRTH
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M. X RT2EEHRBAF

34. Particulars of Principal Subsidiaries

(Continued) (%)
Place of
incorporation Issued and fully
or registration/ paid share capital
Name of subsidiary operations or registered capital Principal activities
WELREH AMRURBLEELE ERTREBZREIIIMESR TEEK
HETZ (BB)ERLA PRC* Registered capital of HK$75,000,000 Manufacturing of
HE i+t & 475,000,0007% 7T household electrical
appliances and
plastic parts
EEFEERR
_?éﬁé < 1#
Artreal Manufactory Limited Hong Kong 2 ordinary shares of HK$1 each Trading of household
KEIEFEBARA BB QRERENE T2 L@R electrical appliances
KEREESR
Conan Electric Manufacturing Limited ~ Hong Kong 2 ordinary shares of HK$1 each Trading of household
RirEXBEFRAF B R EREENE T2 LT RB electrical appliances
REREESR
Electrical Investments Limited British Virgin Islands/ 1 ordinary share of USD1 Inactive
Hong Kong IRAEIETZ EBR EmE
RERAHE /A%
Ever Sources Investment Limited Hong Kong 100 ordinary shares of HK$1 each Property holding
EEAREFRAA B 100 BREEIB T EEK RENZ
Global Express (HK) Limited Hong Kong 2 ordinary shares of HK$1 each Investment holding
i (B8)BERAR B 2REREBEIRT 2 ERR REER
Good Eagle Investment Limited Hong Kong 1 ordinary share of HK$1 Investment holding
EEREARRA B IREEIET EBR REER
Great Yield Limited Hong Kong 1 ordinary share of HK$ 1 Trading of household
REERRA B 1REES Tz ERR electrical appliances
REREESR
EGHEERADAR PRC* Registered capital of HK$2,800,000 Manufacturing and trading
H 1 & 42,800,000/ 1T of household electrical

appliances and

plastic parts
EERBHRETRER

BREHG
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(Continued)

Name of subsidiary
WEARAE

EETEME (BN BRAR

Karan Electric Manufacturing Limited
EREXREEFRAR

New Prestige Investments Limited*

Ngai Shing (Far East) Plastic &
Metalwares Factory Limited
B (RR)EZBRLEBERAA

Progress Associates Limited*

Southern Well Holdings Limited*
HEEEERAR"

Total Profits Limited

Allan International Holdings Limited Zxfa EIBEEE AR 2 &

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
For the year ended 31 March 2013

34. Particulars of Principal Subsidiaries

Place of
incorporation
or registration/
operations

B RE 3k

PRC*
P E

PRC*
P E

Hong Kong
e

Hong Kong
e

Hong Kong
e

British Virgin Islands/
Hong Kong
RBRUBE/BR

Hong Kong/PRC
B,/

British Virgin Islands/
Hong Kong
RBRUBE/BR

(%)

Issued and fully
paid share capital
or registered capital

ERTRBERAEMER

Registered capital of HK$100,000,000
7t fit & 25100,000,0007% 70

Registered capital of USD3,500,000
& 773,500,000% 7T

100 ordinary shares of HK$1 each
100 BREEIE T LRk

1 ordinary share of HK$1
IREETETZ ERR

100 ordinary shares of HK$10 each and
54,000 non-voting deferred shares of

HK$10 each

100M% B A% E B 1078 7T 2 T @ Ak %54,000
BERAEI0B T ELEEELTRNG

1 ordinary share of USD1
REBEIET EBR

2 ordinary shares of HK$1 each
REREEIA T EBR

2 ordinary shares of USD1 each
REEIET LK

e MRS

BE_T—==A=1+—HIIEE

S ML

M. X RT2EEHRBAF

Principal activities

TEXH

Manufacturing of
household electrical
appliances and plastic
parts

EEFXEESREBZH

Manufacturing and trading
of household electrical
appliances and

plastic parts
AEREHEREETSRR
BREH
Trading of household
electrical appliances
KHAREESR

Property investment

- UES

Property holding
RENZ

Investment in securities

Property Investment

REME

Investment holding

REER
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34.Particulars of Principal Subsidiaries 34. KA R Z X EME A T

(Continued) (%)

Place of

incorporation Issued and fully

or registration/ paid share capital
Name of subsidiary operations or registered capital Principal activities
WEAR AR AMRIRECEERYE ERTRAERAIZMER TEXE
Warran Electric Manufacturing Limited  Hong Kong 100 ordinary shares of HK$10 each Provision of transportation
ERBSEHEFRD B 100 R EEI0E T 2 B services

REEBHRY

Well Sincere Investment Limited* Hong Kong 2 ordinary shares of HK$1 each Investment holding
BARERRAR" e 2RBREEIRT 2 ERR RERR
2 Direct subsidiaries * BEEHEBAF
# Wholly foreign-owned enterprises # 2EINHEEDSE
None of the subsidiaries had issued any debt securities at the RELL B R R ERITERESE
end of the year. % o
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Financial Summary

The following table summarises the results, assets and liabilities of
the Group for the five years ended 31 March 2013.

Revenue

Profit before tax
Taxation

Profit for the year

Total assets
Total liabilities

Net assets

3

BR 7% At 7
WA

AREE B

BREMR®E
BEAE

BEFE

IR

TRARAEEBE

T-=F=A=1—H

— =

FTREFEzZZE EENAGEHE-

For the year ended 31 March
BE=-A=+—-HLFE

2013 2012 2011 2010 2009
—®-=f _"T-—_F _T——F _ZT-FTF _TINF
HK$’000 HK$ 000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
FET FET FET FET FET
2,356,362 2,416,920 2,220,511 1,820,187 1,869,529
133,130 158,451 199,631 234,483 130,881
(24,304) (26,314) (38,400) (43,117) (23,943)
108,826 127,137 161,231 191,366 106,938

As at 31 March

R=BA=+—H
2013 2012 2011 2010 2009
—E-= —T——F =ZZ——%F ZT-TF ZZTNF
HK$’000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
FET FHETT FET FHET FHET
1,755,339 1,780,232 1,380,190 1,235,724 1,036,196
748,811 838,494 528,249 476,910 414,651
1,006,528 941,738 851,941 758,814 621,545
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